
Document last changed: 11/10/2008 3:16 PM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, November 17, 2008 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Discussion on NC Division of Aging Service Breach   

Item 4 Public Hearing and Action  PB 04-71 Swan Beach Corolla, LLC: 
Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance, Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, to create an Off Road 
Historic Village Commercial Overlay District. 

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action  PB 04-72 Swan Beach Corolla, LLC: 
Request to establish an Off Road Historic Village Commercial 
Overlay District on approximately 25.77 acres.  The property is 
located on Ocean Pearl Road north of the intersection of Albatross 
Lane, Swan Beach.  Tax Map 101, Lot 1, and Tax Map 101A, Lots 
C & D Section 1, Fruitville Township. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-50 Currituck County Planning 
Board:  Request to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Table of Permissible Uses, to allow 
wastewater treatment plants with a Special Use Permit. 

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-41 Bissell Professional Group - 
Text Amendment for RO2 Roads and Lots:  Request to amend 
UDO Chapter 9: Infrastructure; Chapter 2: Zoning Districts; and 
Chapter 10: Subdivision Requirements to allow existing larger 
parcels to be re-subdivided into open space subdivisions in the 
RO2 zoning district with sand roads that follow the configurations of 

1



Document last changed: 11/10/2008 3:16 PM 

 
previously approved roads and lots (Carova Beach, Swan Beach, 
etc.). 

Item 8 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-53 Morrison/Myers (Horgan):  
Request to rezone approximately 119.96 acres from Agricultural (A) 
to Residential (R).  The property is located at 291 West Side Lane, 
Tax Map 112, Lot 3C, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 9 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-48 Currituck Marina/Horgan:  
Request to establish a Conditional District – Planned Unit 
Development Overlay Zone (CD-PUD) on approximately 119.96 
acres.  The property is located at 291 West Side Lane, Tax Map 
112, Lot 3C, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 10 Consideration of Bid Award for RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser-
Mainland Water System Upgrades   

Item 11 Consideration and Action  on Member Waste Management 
Agreement with Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management 
Authority 

Item 12 Consideration and Action  on Agreement for operation of 
Transfer Station with Republic Services of NC, LLC 

Item 13 Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget amendments 
2. Approval of November 3, 2008, Minutes 
3. Co-Signature Authority-North Carolina Cooperative Extension 
4. Charge to Tax Collector Levy on Motor Vehicles for August 

Renewals 

Item 14 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 15 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Budget Amendments 

Adjourn 

 

 

2



INFORMATION TO CARELINE REGARDING THE DIVISION OF
AGING ANA ADULT SERVICES SECURITY BREACH

THE INCIDENT

On Saturday October 25 2008 as aDivision of Aging and Adult Services employee was

returning from a training conference her laptop computer was stolen from the Hertz
Rental Car Shuttle This theft happened in Atlanta Georgia

The Atlanta Police Department was immediately notified The Division employee also
notified Hertz and the appropriate airport authorities

The employee has some information from aDivision database on her computer If you
received a letter from the Division ofAging and Adult Services your name phone
number address date ofbirth and nine digit social security number were on that laptop

The laptop information is password protected But since passwords can be beaten your
information could still be accessed

There is no way to know if the individual who stole the computer just wanted a laptop or

whether they will try to find and use any personal information from that computer

WHAT TO DO

You should take steps to insure that your information is not used to obtain credit in
name

1 Review your credit report Now and regulazly as recommended by the credit

reporting bureau or the North Carolina Attorney Generals Office

You are encouraged to iirunediately access and review your credit reports from each of
the three major credit reporting agencies You can do this without cost by visiting the
websitewwwamuaalcreditreportcomor calling them at18773228228 Since your
personal information may not be used immediately you should check your credit reports
regularly as recommended by the credit reporting agencies

2 Contact each credit bureau to ask that they put aFREE 90 day freeze one
account Talk to the reporting agencies about placing asecurity freeze or a

more permanent fraud alert on your account There may be acharge for this

You are encouraged to place an initial fraud alert on your credit report with each ofthe
three major credit reporting agencies An initial fraud alert will be effective for 90
days It is free Itwill make it harder for someone to establish credit in your name To

place an initial fraud alert with the credit reporting agencies the appropriate telephone
number for each agency is

3



wwwEquifaxcom 18005256285
wwwTransUnioncom18006807289
wwwExneriancom 18883973742

As you speak to someone at the credit reporting agencies listed above you should
also discuss placing a security freeze to stop access to new credit in your name

WHO TO CONTACT FORADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON ID THEFT

For additional information on how to protect yourself against Identity Theft you may
contact the North Carolina Attorney GeneralsConsumer Protection Division at 1
8775NO SCAM18775667226 or access the NoScam website at

wwwnoscaxnncgov The NoScam website contains information on preventing identity
theft as well as resources and forms you may find useful

You may also wish to contact the Identity Theft Hotline at the Federal Trade
Commission That telephone number is18774384338

CONTACT NUMBERS

Credit ReportingAcies
wwwEquifaxcom 18005256285
wwwTransUnioncorn18006807289

wwwExperiancom 18883973742

North Carolina Attorney Generals Consumer Protection Division at18775NO SCAM

18775667226 or access the NoScam website atwwwnoscamncov

Identity Theft Hotline at the Federal Trade Commission That telephone number is 1877
4384338

2

4



aSTArEo

d paoy

nnauw

North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services

Division of Aging and Adult Services
2101 MailService Center Raleigh North Carolina 276992101

Te1919 7333983 Fax No 919 7330443

Michael F Easley Governor

Dempsey Benton Secretary

October 31 2008

Insert Name
Insert Address
Insert City State Zip Code

Dear Insert Name

Dennis W Streets

Director

An incident occurred which involved theft of some ofyour personal information The

purpose ofthis letter is to explain to you what has happened and to outline the steps you should
take

The Division ofAging and Adult Services DAAS in connection with the Home and

Community Services program receives information about the clients served by local agencies
These local agencies provide client services such as congregate meals in home aide services
transportation etc The local agencies send DAAS information on the clients to whom services
are provided Formerly that information included clients ninedigit social security numbers as

well as other identifying information DAAS used this information it received from the local

agencies for purposes connected with the Home and CommunityBased Services program

Although DAAS no longer receives ninedigit social security numbers from local agencies some

of our databases still have this personal information

On Saturday October 25 2008 a DAAS employee had a computer stolen that had this

personal information We have been in touch with the police department about the theft and
have also contacted the North Carolina State Bureau of Investigation for its assistance in this
matter

We have determined that the computer that was stolen contained some of your personal
information Our records show that this computer contained your name date of birth address
phone number and yourninedigit social security number Although the information on the

computer is password protected your personal information is still at risk Our concern is that
your personal information that is on this computer might be used for identity theft We are

sending this letter to you so that you can take appropriate action to protect yourself from this

possibility
First you are encouraged to immediately access and review your credit reports from each

ofthe three major credit reporting agencies You can do this without cost by visiting the website

wwwannualcreditrepottcomor calling them at18773228228 Since your personal

Location 693 Palmer Drive Raleigh NC 27603 State Courier No562002
An Equal Opportunity Affirmative Action Employer

5



Identifying Information Letter

October 31 2008

Page 2 of 2

information may not be used immediately you should check your credit reports regularly as

recommended by the credit reporting agencies
Ifany activity appears on your credit report which you believe is questionable you

should contact your local police department or sheriffs office and file the appropriate reports
Ifyou become a victim of identity theft you should call the Identity Theft Hotline at the Federal
Trade Commission That telephone number is18774384338

Second you are encouraged to place an initial fraud alert on your credit report with
each ofthe three major credit reporting agencies An initial fraud alert will be effective for 90

days It is free It will make it harder for someone to establish credit in your name To place an

initial fraud alert with the credit reporting agencies the appropriate telephone number for each
agency is

wwwEquifaxcom 18005256285
wwwTransUnioncom18006807289

wwwExperiancorn 18883973742

As you speak to someone at the credit reporting agencies listed above you should also
discuss placing a security freeze to stop access to new credit in your name

For additional information on how to protect yourself against Identity Theft you may
contact the North Carolina Attorney GeneralsConsumer Protection Division at18775NO
SCAM18775667226 or access the NoScam website at wwwnoscamnciovThe NoScam
website contains information on preventing identity theft as well as resources and forms you may
find useful

The Division ofAging and Adult Services is truly sorry about this theft of your personal
information and the inconvenience this incident will cause We know how worrisome this news

may be to you and wish to assure you that we stand ready to assist you in this matter We will
continue to closely monitor this incident and work with law enforcement agencies in the hope
that we can recover the computer and determine whether or not your personal information was

accessed Ifthe computer is recovered and we can make this determination we will notify you

Ifyou have questions or concerns please contact the CARELINE Information and
Referral Service at18006627030EnglishEspanol or TTY for only the hearing impaired at

18774522514The CARELINEis open 24 hours a day 7 days aweek including state
holidays In the Triangle area call9198554400 or9197334851TTY for the hearing
impaired

Si tiene preguntas favor de comunicarse con el CARELINE la Linea de informacion
y referencia al18006627030 InglesEspanol o llame al18774522514este numero es el
TTY numero exclusivo para personas con problemas de audicion El CARELINEesta abierto
24 horas al dia 7 dias a la semana incluyendo dias feriados En el area del triangulo llame al
9198554400 Ingles o Espanol 0 9197334851TTY para personas con problemas de
audicion

Again Iam so sorry this incident occurred and trust that the resource information we

have provided is useful

Sincerely
evveW

Dennis W Streets

6



Memo

To AAA Directors

From Dennis Streets

Subject Security Breach

Date November 3 2008

Last weekend aDivision ofAging and Adult Services DAAS staff member was at an

approved mandatory conference While on her return her laptop was stolen from the
rental car shuttle The laptop contained sensitive personal and identifying information
for Home and Community Care Block Grant and Family Caregiver Support Program
clients It was reported immediately to the authorities and through the chain ofcommand
within DAAS and the Department ofHealth and Human Services

Efforts have been made to locate the laptop and the Department continues to workwith
the law enforcement authorities At this point the laptop has not been recovered

In accordance with North Carolina Law all clients impacted must be notified ofthis
breach ofsecurityeventhough there was some password protection A standard letter
approved by the Department wasmailed out today to each affected client The letter

pertains to those whose personal information in the database included name address
phone date ofbirth and their9digit Social Security number The letter contains
information on how citizens need to protect themselves against identity theft and contact
numbers to get more information and assistance I am also referencing several fact sheets
that contain relevant tips

DAAS has arranged with the Office ofCitizen ServicesCARELINE to handle the initial

response ofthis potentially high volume of calls see attached for the information shared
with CARELINE for their ready reference DAAS staff will assist with more

challenging calls We cannot anticipate the impact ofcalls or requests going to the AAAs
or local providers but we appreciate all ofthe assistance that you will be asked to

provide At this time we are unsure ofthe response with such a large scope of citizens

being impacted We regret the impact this might have but hope you can appreciate why
these measures are necessary We know we all share the common belief to act in the best
interest of our seniors and their caregivers

DAAS is committed to being responsive and supportive ofour clients who may be
impacted by this security breach This is a serious matterassisting with resolving it is a

top priority We will be exploring ways to use our trained Victims Assistance volunteers
and welcome your ideas as well Please share this communication with your local

providers Thanks for all oho

7



 
 
 
 

 MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Mike Kear, Chief Planner 
 
DATE: November 7, 2004 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to Chapter 4: Overlay Districts of the UDO to create an 

Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District. 
 
 

Bissell Professional Group and Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
have requested an amendment to the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance, Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, and the Official Zoning Atlas.  The 
proposed amendment has been submitted in conjunction with an overlay 
rezoning request of 25.77 acres in the Northern most part of Swan Beach 
Subdivision.  The overlay rezoning request is contingent upon the approval of 
this amendment request.  (A copy of this proposed amendment is attached for 
your review).   

 
The Staff’s concerns are the following: 
 
• Approval of this amendment and subseqent zoning request would create an 

increase in traffic along the beach, currently the only way to get to and from 
the site.  There is a concern that this additional traffic will endanger people 
who choose to recreate along these secluded beaches.     

• The Currituck County Fire Marshall has concerns about the water availability 
for fire suppression for the proposed buildings since there is no county water 
available.  The North Carolina Building Code, Vol., Fire Prevention Code 
specifically mentions requirements for commercial areas such as all weather 
driving surfaces, proper turning radius, and water availability.  Additionally, 
the NC Building Code restricts the height of commercial buildings to 35 feet in 
areas where there is no aerial fire apparatus.  The proposal is calling for a 
height limitation of 42 feet.   

• There appears to be an area of the northern part of this proposed site that 
overlaps into the U.S. Fish and Wildlife property as shown on the property 
survey.  This boundary dispute should be resolved prior to any approval.  

• According to FEMA maps, the property is located almost entirely in the 100 
year floodplain and extends approximately 700 feet in the new VE (high risk) 
area as shown of the new Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).  A concern has 

8



also been raised regarding how this proposal if built would affect the FEMA 
flood insurance rating for other structures in this area.    

• Staff would like to have an Environmental Impact Study be prepared for the 
site to study the current verses proposed conditions, especially in the area of 
stormwater, wastewater treatment, access to the site, and how the proposed 
development and nearby properties will be affected by the CBRS Zone 
(Coastal Barrier Resource System).    

 
Staff is recommending denial on the basis that this proposal would create 

further safety concerns for the recreating public using the northern beaches as 
well as the residents of the area.  It’s the staff’s position that the Off Road 
Historic Commercial Overlay District would have more of an adverse impact on 
the fragile environment in this area of the Outer Banks than the traditional 
residential development in the RO2 zone.     
 
PLANNING BOARD On April 12, 2005 the Planning Board reviewed this  
RECOMMENDATION: request and recommended denial. 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION; 
Mr. Bell asked why the height limitation was being increased. 
 
Mr. Bissell said that the purpose is to allow a more attractive structure, similar to 
the old Nags Head lifesaving station structure. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what accessory lodging units are. 
 
Mr. Bissell said that accessory lodging units are separate bungalow type 
structures. 
 
Mr. Bell asked how water and sewer concerns would be addressed. 
 
Mr. Bissell said they’d be provided on site, regulated by the State. 
   
Mr. Hawley asked how they proposed to get the supplies to that end of the 
beach.  Linens, food, etc. 
 
Mr. Bissell said the same is now and that traffic would not be different than it is 
now, and cited examples of the log trucks and such that are going in now to build 
homes.  The issues presented by the Fire Marshall could be addressed at the 
design stage. 
 
 

9



Mr. Ferguson asked if there would be a sprinkler type fire suppression system. 
 
Mr. Bissell said yes.  
 
Gene Snow, co-director of Corolla Wild Horse fund, said that this will open the 
door to commercial development and the horses will be eliminated.  The horses 
have been designated as a NC cultural resource.  They have no where else to 
go, they have been pushed to the outer limits. 
 
Tom Hudak, President of Swan Beach property owner’s assn., spoke on behalf 
of the membership of the association.  97% of the people are in agreement to 
preserve the area as is and spoke against the amendment. 
 
Ron Darrow, resident of Carova, said he and his wife wanted to see the area stay 
as it is as well.  He is afraid that this will be the first of many commercial 
developments in this area, and spoke against the amendment.   
 
Nyla Johnson, Corolla Wild Horse fund, lives in Moyock and works at the beach.   
She spoke against the proposed amendment and the preservation of the horses. 
 
Gene Walters, resident, spoke against the amendment. 
 
Doris Jordan, Norfolk, spoke about the beautiful environment and spoke against 
the amendment.   She said the investors are the only ones who will benefit from 
this proposal and the environment is the issue, not the money that will be made. 
 
Carl Newton, resident of Swan Beach, spoke against the amendment and for the 
preservation of the environment in the area. 
 
Linda Spencer, resident, spoke against the amendment.  
 
Bill Vann, Fire Chief of Carova Beach, said a letter was written by the fire dept 
expressing concerns about fire issues.  The fire department cannot get high 
enough in the air in the event of a fire and wonders if the developer or the county 
is willing to provide manpower to this area. 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to deny the request as presented.  Mr.  Keel seconded the 
request.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Since the Planning Board meeting the applicant has made some slight 
modifications to the text amendment.  The changes include reducing the 
maximum height of the buildings down to 35’, eliminating bridal trails and 
stables.  The maximum amount of accessory lodging units was changed 
from 15 – 2 bedroom units to 10 bedrooms per acre. 

10



 
 
 

PB 04-71 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
Bissell Professional Group and Currituck County Board of Commissioners requests the 
following amendment to the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance: 
 

PB 04-71:  Amendment to Chapter 4: Overlay Districts of the UDO to create an 
Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended 
as follows: 
 
Item 1: That the following sections be amended: 
 
Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, Section 4.8 Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay  
 
1. The Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District is a floating district intended 

to provide a vital, place-appropriate, and community-enhancing area of limited 
commercial activities to serve existing and developing residential subdivisions in the 
County.  These uses are in addition to the RO2 uses authorized in Chapter 2. 

 
2. The Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District designation shall only apply to 

contiguous parcels of land greater than 20 acres with common ownership, and shall 
have a specific height limitation of 42 35 feet. 

 
3. The Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District designation shall only apply to 

parcels within the RO2 zoning district. 
 
4. Permitted Uses - The following uses shall be permitted by right and require only a zoning 

permit(s): 
 

a. Post Office  
b. Fire/Emergency Medical/Sheriff’s Satellite Office (County leased facilities) 
c. Churches, Synagogues, and Temples 
d. Convenience Stores 
e. Inn (not to exceed 50 bedrooms) 
f. Real Estate Offices 
g. Professional Offices 
h. Accessory lodging units not to exceed 15 – 2 bedroom units (30 bedrooms total) 10 

bedrooms per acre 
 

5. Conditional Uses - The following uses may be permitted subject to the requirements of 
this district and additional regulations and requirements imposed by the Board of 
Commissioners: 

 
a. Retail Shops 
b. Seafood Market 

11



c. Theatres 
d. Outdoor recreation areas, including parks, picnic areas, nature trails, bridle paths, 

riding stables, playgrounds, boat ramps, and customary concessions connected 
therewith 

e. Restaurants- Restaurants maybe permitted subject to other requirements of this 
chapter and provided that the following minimum conditions be met: (i) the restaurant 
shall not feature a drive-though window service whereby patrons are served while 
seated in a motor vehicle; and (ii) the restaurant shall include facilities for indoor 
seating and consumption of food and/or beverages. 

 
6. Dimensional Requirements – Unless otherwise specified in this ordinance, dimensional 

standards in Chapter 2 shall apply. 
 

7. Specific Development Requirements: 
 

a. Street Design and Construction Standards 
 

(i) All streets serving any uses within the Off Road Historic Village Commercial 
Overlay District shall be designed to meet the requirements of NCDOT. 

 
(ii) "Hatteras" Ramps, a minimum of 24 feet in width shall be provided in those 

areas that are consistent with the dynamics and character of the site. 
 
(iii) All streets serving any uses within the Off Road Historic Village Commercial 

Overlay District shall be constructed in a manner consistent with NCDOT 
guidelines but will at a minimum utilize compounded (compacted) subgrade 
materials and surfaced with minimum of three (3) inches of shell or other similar 
substance. 

 
(iv) Roadside drainage swales shall be installed a minimum depth of 15 inches with 

side slopes not greater than 3:1.  Associated drainage plans and improvements 
shall be required and approved by the Currituck County Engineer and meet the 
requirements of Chapter 6 of the UDO. 

(v) All construction standards shall be made n accordance with Exhibit A, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference 

 
b. All utilities shall be placed underground for all uses within the Off Road Historic 

Village Commercial Overlay District. 
 

8. Parking 
 

a. All required parking shall meet the use standards in Chapter 8. 
 
b. All vehicle accommodation areas shall be improved in accordance with the street 

construction standards in paragraph 7 (a) above. 
 

9. Signs 
 

a. All signs shall comply with Chapter 4: Overlay Districts, Outer Banks Overlay District 
for all uses within the Off Road Historic Village Commercial Overlay District. 

12



 
 
Item 2: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or any 
sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or circumstance 
shall be held unconstitutional or volatile of the Laws of the State of North Carolina by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not affect or impair any of 
the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application. 
 
 
Item 3: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day of 
   , 2008. 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:  April 122, 2005  
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  Denial    
 VOTE:   AYES  10 NAYS  0  
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

13



Zoning Staff Report: PB 04-72 
Swan Beach Corolla LLC, - Rezoning 

Board of Commissioners 
 
* Please note this staff report was prepared in 2005 and does not necessarily reflect current 
conditions.  Any changes will be notated using a combination of italics and bolding. 
 

 
TYPE OF REQUEST:  Request for rezoning three lots containing a total area of 25.77 

acres from residential (RO2) to a commercial overlay zone.    
 
LOCATION:  This site is located in Fruitville Township (Outer Banks) at the 

Northern most section of Swan Beach along Ocean Pearl Road, 
an undeveloped public right-of-way.   

 
TAX ID:                          Tax Maps 101A-C-1, 101A-D-1 & 101-1. 
 
PROPERTY OWNERS:  Swan Beach Corolla, LLC  
 
APPLICANTS:  Bissell Professional Group/Mark S. Bissell 
 
 
ZONING:   Current Zoning   Proposed Zoning 

Outer Banks Limited Access    Off Road Historic  
Residential (RO-2)                   Historic Village  

  Commercial Overlay 
 
ZONING HISTORY: Property has been zoned Outer Banks Limited Access Residential 

(RO2) since 1989.   
  
SURROUNDING  
ZONING/LAND USE:  Zoning   Land Use 
  NORTH: Federal Lands   Wildlife Preserve 
  SOUTH: Residential (RO2)                Residential (RO2) 
  EAST: Public Trust Lands               Atlantic Ocean 

  WEST: Residential (R02)                    Residential (R02)   
  

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant.  
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: The applicant has stated that the reason for the request is to 

create a commercial Off Road Historic Village to serve existing 
and developing residential subdivisions in the County.   

 
LAND USE PLAN: The 1990 Land Use Plan shows this property as “Limited 

Transition” (The 2006 Land Use Plan designates this property 
as Limited Service in the Carova Sub-Area).  The purpose of 
this class is “to provide for development in areas that will have 
some services, but are suitable for lower densities than those 
associated with the urban transition class, and/are geographically 

14



remote from existing towns and municipalities”.  This class is 
intended for residential developments with densities of three units 
per acre or less.  This class also contains nonresidential areas 
along major transportation routes.  This rezoning request is not 
consistent with the 1990 Land Use designation. 

 
PUBLIC SERVICES  
    AND UTILITIES: Carova Volunteer Fire Department provides fire protection for this 

area.  Electric and telephone are currently available at this 
location.   

 
TRANSPORTATION:  Property has approximately 636 feet of frontage on the east side 

of Ocean Pearl Road (an unimproved road) and approximately 
857 feet of frontage on the west side of Ocean Pearl Road.  The 
nearest public road to this site is approximately four miles to the 
south.  Vehicular access to this section of the Outer Banks is 
restricted to 4 wheel drive vehicles only.  Visitors and residents of 
this area either access the area by boat via Currituck Sound or 
travel along the beach until they locate a Hatteras Ramp suitable 
to crossover to access one of the several platted right of ways 
within the Swan Beach Subdivision, none of which meet the 
minimum standards of a public roadway.  Most roads in the 
subdivision are sand and are poorly drained.            

 
FLOOD ZONE: According to FEMA maps, the property is located entirely within 

the 100 year floodplain and extends approximately 700 feet in the 
new VE (high risk) area as shown of the new Flood Insurance 
Rate Map (FIRM).       

 
SOILS: According to the Currituck County Soil Survey, the property 

consists of approximately 95 percent of soils suitable for on-site 
septic systems.   

 
STAFF COMMENTS:  
 

• With the exception of the north side, all this property is surrounded by residential (RO2) 
zoning.  The U. S. Government owns the lands to the north known as the Currituck 
National Wildlife Refuge.       

• Granting of this zoning request would create an increase in traffic along the beach, 
currently the only way to get to and from the site.  There is a concern that this additional 
traffic will endanger people who choose to recreate along these secluded beaches.     

• The Currituck County Fire Marshall has concerns about the water availability for fire 
suppression since there is no county water available.  The North Carolina Building Code, 
Vol., Fire Prevention Code specifically mentions requirements for commercial areas 
such as all weather driving surfaces, proper turning radius, and water availability.  
Additionally, the NC Building Code restricts the height of commercial buildings to 35 feet 
in areas where there is no aerial fire apparatus.   

 

    

15



 
STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends denial from RO2 to commercial zone for the 

following reasons:  
 

• There is no basic infrastructure to support this use (i.e.  roads, 
water, etc). 

• This area is not eligible for any Federal Flood Insurance as it 
has been designated as a Coastal Barrier Resources Act 
(CBRA) Zone by Congress. 

• Commercial Zoning will likely induce or stimulate growth at a 
quicker pace. 

• This rezoning is not consistent with either the existing (1990) 
or Future County Land Use Plan, which has yet to be adopted.  

• The proposal is not consistent with the subsequently 
adopted 2006 Land Use Plan. 

 
 
PLANNING BOARD On April 12, 2005 the Planning Board  
RECOMMENDATION: reviewed this request and recommended denial. 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION: 
Mr. Bissell stated that he understands that the people do not want change, but he doesn’t feel 
that this proposal is driving the change.   
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Keel motioned to deny the request as presented.  Mr.  Riley seconded the request.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

16



Proposed Swan Beach
Off-Road Historic

Village Commercial
Overlay Zone

(PB 04-70)

Proximity to Nearest
Improved Road.

Proposed Overlay Zone

Improved Hardsurface Road
(Terminus of North Beach
Access Rd.)

0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Approximately 4 miles

17



18



19



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-6029 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Ben E. Woody, AICP 
 Planning Director 
 
Date: November 10, 2008 
 
Re:  PB 08-50 Wastewater Treatment Plants 
 
 
 
The Currituck County Planning Board recently requested that staff develop a text 
amendment to require a special use permit for wastewater treatment plants.  Currently 
the Unified Development Ordinance permits wastewater treatment plants (utility 
facilities) “by-right” in all zoning districts.  This means that a wastewater treatment plant 
would be permitted in any zoning district with an administrative approval. 
 
The Planning Board is recommending that a special use permit be required for the 
establishment of any wastewater treatment plant due to its often incompatible nature 
with surrounding land uses.  The special use permit process requires a public hearing 
and approval by the Board of Commissioners, rather than relying on an administrative 
approval.  Considering the range of secondary impacts commonly associated with a 
wastewater treatment plant, this type of oversight is common in other governmental 
jurisdictions. 
 
A copy of the proposed text amendment and meeting minutes from the October 
Planning Board meeting are attached.  Should you have any questions, do not hesitate 
to contact me at 232-6029. 
 

20



 

 
 

Wastewater Treatment Plants 
PB 08-50 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
An amendment to Chapter 2: Zoning Districts and Chapter 17: Definitions to establish 
and require a special use permit for wastewater treatment facilities. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
 
Item 1: That Section 2.5 Permitted Uses Table is amended by adding in alphabetical 
order the following underlined language:  
 
Use LUC Zoning Districts Special 
Other  A RA R RO1 RO2 RR GB C LBH LM HM Requirements 
Wastewater 
Treatment 
Facilities 

IV S S S S S S S S S S S  

 
 
Item 2: That Section 17.2 Definitions is amended by adding in alphabetical order the 
following underlined language: 
 
Section 17.2 Definitions 
 
Wastewater Treatment Facilities 
Any facility used for the treatment of sewage. The term shall not include on-site septic tank systems 
or similar in-ground systems approved by Albemarle Regional Health Services.  
 
 
Item 3: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
 
Item 4: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 200 . 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 

21



 

 
 

 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

22



 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
No discussion. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance to allow wastewater treatment plants with a Special Use 
Permit.  Mr. West seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

23



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-3055 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Planning Department 
 
Date: November 10, 2008 
 
Re:  PB 08-41 Bissell Professional Group- RO2 Roads and Lots 
 
 
 
Bissell Professional Group is proposing a series of amendments that will affect road and 
subdivision standards for the RO2 (Outer Banks Limited Access Residential District) 
area. The purpose is to allow existing larger parcels to be re-subdivided into open space 
subdivisions in the RO2 zoning district.  The intention is for the proposed subdivision to 
follow the basic configuration of previously approved roads and lots. 
 
In summary, the request seeks to change the following Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) standards for the RO2 district:  

• Amend the road standards from NCDOT minimum requirements to graded, sand 
roads; 

• Allow lots to have a 7:1 depth to width ratio in RO2 open space subdivisions; 
• Allow the relocation of platted lots or open space parcels from other areas of a 

subdivision to allow a transfer of density to ocean front lots. The minimum lot size 
would remain at 2.75 acres with the option of clustering down to1.5 acres with a 
requisite dedication of open space; 

• Provide that ocean access right-of-ways shall be required to be 30 feet in width 
instead of 45 feet; 

• The requirement for wooden ramps or “Hatteras” ramps is deleted at the request 
of the fire department; and, 

• The Administrator shall determine the amount of any maintenance bonds at the 
time of Final Plat recordation. 

 
Attached please find a narrative of the request submitted by Bissell Professional Group, 
the proposed text amendment changes, and meeting minutes from both the September 
and October Planning Board meetings. 
 
Staff concurs with the following assessment by Bissell Professional Group that these 
changes conform to the 2006 Land Use Plan.  Should you have any questions in 
advance of the meeting, please contact Ben Woody or David Webb at 232-3055. 

24



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 2 of 12 

Bissell Professional Group Submitted the following narrative with their application: 
 
 

Submitted by Bissell Professional Group 
 

REQUEST FOR  
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE                         

TEXT AMENDMENTS FOR                                            
 ZONING, INFRASTRUCTURE, AND SUBDIVISION REQUIREMENTS 

 
Item 1: 
Several Currituck County UDO references to street and road standards for the RO2 
district conflict with the Currituck Land Use Plan as well as current CAMA regulations for 
the district.  Paragraphs pertaining to RO2 within the UDO include requirements for 
paved or gravel road surfaces.   
 
The Currituck Land Use Plan policies in regard to road construction within the RO2 
district state the following: 
 

POLICY OB6: 
 Concerning the OFF-ROAD AREAS OF THE OUTER BANKS, Currituck County 

shall not permit or encourage the provision of growth-inducing facilities and services 
to these areas, including for example, commercial services, centralized sewage 
treatment and hard surface roads. 

 
POLICY OB8: 
 In order to protect WILD HORSES, Currituck County shall not permit nor 
 encourage the provision of hard surface roads in the off-road area of Carova. 

 
The UDO requirements for road surfaces within the RO2 district are also in conflict with 
CAMA regulations within the district, which prohibit hardened and gravel surfaced 
roadways. 
 
The UDO requirements of a 45’ minimum right-of-way is deemed unnecessary for the 
vehicle beach accesses within the RO-2 district. The 45’ minimum width is in 
accordance with the current Subdivision Roads Minimum Construction Standards, 
established for the particular type of street in question by the North Carolina Department 
of Transportation, Division of Highways (NCDOT).  Streets within the RO-2 district will 
not be dedicated to the NCDOT, therefore future vehicle beach accesses within the RO-
2 district should not be required to meet the 45’ minimum width, but should meet a 
minimum 30’ R/W width. 
 
Item 2:  
The Currituck County UDO references to lot geometry require lots in all subdivisions, in 
every district, to have a single restrictive width-to-depth ratio with a maximum of 1:4, 
which was designed for mainland Currituck with 40,000 sq.ft. lots, providing for a 100’ 
minimum lot width in an open space subdivision.  The RO-2 district allows for a 

25



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 3 of 12 

minimum lot size of 65,340 sq.ft. in an open space subdivision.  Due to some of the 
irregular parcel arrangements, varying shorelines, as well as existing topography, 
drainage and ecological features within the RO-2 district, adhering to this ratio would not 
be in the best interest for preserving the unique qualities of this district.  For these 
reasons as well as for the purpose of maximizing transfer and tax base values, a less 
restrictive width-to-depth ratio would be more appropriate for the RO-2 district, while still 
providing a minimum 100’ front lot width. 
 
Item 3: 
Due to the existing parcel configuration within the RO-2 district, issues of providing the 
required open space and transferring the development densities across right-of-ways 
between adjacent parcels have been problems for the design of open space 
subdivisions within the district. It is desired to have a mechanism for the creation of 
larger contiguous open space areas to maximize their potential usage and enjoyment by 
the population of proposed developments, with the possibility of public dedication of 
these areas. 
 
To alleviate the above conflicts, Bissell Professional Group requests the following 
amendments to the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance: 

26



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 4 of 12 

RO2 Roads and Lots 
PB 08-41 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
Bissell Professional Group 

 
Request to amend UDO Chapter 9: Infrastructure; Chapter 2: Zoning Districts; and 
Chapter 10: Subdivision Requirements to allow existing larger parcels to be re-
subdivided into open space subdivisions in the RO2 zoning district with sand roads that 
follow the configurations of previously approved roads and lots (Carova Beach, Swan 
Beach, etc.) 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That section 9.1.8 Street Standards within the RO2 District 
be amended  as follows by deleting the strike though text and adding the underlined text: 

 
A. The streets constructed in a major subdivision shall comply with all of the 

standards as set forth by the North Carolina Department of Transportation and 
other applicable state regulations with regards to the construction of roads and 
streets intended to be dedicated for assumption for maintenance by the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation. 

 
A. It is not the intent of Currituck County to require hard surfaced roads and streets in 

the RO2 district.  Roads in RO2 district are therefore exempt from NCDOT design 
and construction standards, but shall be graded, drained and stabilized in 
accordance with the provisions of this ordinance.  The design of such roadways shall 
be reviewed  approved by the County Engineer or his their designee. 

 
B. The developer shall stabilize and maintain the rights-of-way so established outside 

of the paved portion travel way of such street by establishment of vegetation or 
other means to the extent reasonably possible under the circumstances. 

  
C. The developer shall comply with all the rules, regulations and requirements of 

Chapter 10 of this Ordinance with regard to major subdivisions. 
 
D. If access to the beach requires crossing a dune line, the developer shall obtain all 

proper CAMA Permits and if legally possible, establish a beach ramp graded 
beach access.  

 
E. The developer shall stabilize and maintain the rights-of-way adjoining and along 

the paved or gravel portions travel ways of the road or street by establishment of 
vegetation or other means to the extent reasonable reasonably possible. 

 

27



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 5 of 12 

F. Whenever a developer wishes to subdivide a tract or parcel of land  which is within 
the future alignment of Ocean Pearl, Ocean Trail, Sandfiddler, and/or Sandpiper,  
the developer shall comply with the following regulations: 

 
1. Establish a right-of-way of a minimum width of 100 feet that is capable to 

connect to and follow the lines of the roads mentioned above; 
 
2. All streets shall be oriented/designed to connect with existing or proposed 

streets shown on previously recorded plats to provide for a continuous right-
of-way to adjoining properties; 

 
3. No developer shall be required to maintain more than one major access street 

or road of 100 feet in width through his subdivision to adjoin with adjoining 
properties.  Any streets which are not necessary for continuous access 
through the developer's property and which may have been shown on 
previously recorded plats, may be abandoned or deleted by the developer so 
long as one continuous access of 100 feet in width is maintained through his 
property to adjoin the neighboring properties to provide for continuous and 
contiguous access north and south parallel with the Atlantic Ocean. 

 
G. The amount of the security shall be determined by the board  Administrator in all 

subdivisions in the RO2 District including private access subdivisions and major 
subdivisions. 

 
H. In the RO2 District, the board  Administrator shall determine the amount of such 

bond in view of all of the surrounding conditions and circumstances. 
 
I. Prior to the Final Plat Approval, the developer shall demonstrate to the reasonable 

satisfaction of the Administrator Board of Commissioners that the private roads 
proposed in such development will be properly maintained.  Such demonstration 
shall include a written plan that explains who will maintain the streets, how they will 
be stabilized and maintained, and how such maintenance shall be financed. 

 
J. When a private road is created under this section, the developer shall establish a 

homeowners association that satisfies the criteria spelled out in Section 10.6, 
convey to that association title to the right-of-way of such streets and roads, and 
obligate the homeowners association to maintain such streets.   

 
K. No final plat that shows lots served by roads or streets authorized under this 

section may be recorded unless the final plat contains the following notation: 
 

"Further subdivision of any lot shown on this plat as served by a road or street may 
be prohibited by the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance unless the 
roads or streets shown on this plat are improved to state standards.  These roads 
do not meet state  standards for the assumption of maintenance due to 
inadequate right-of-way and/or construction or lack of public dedication.  It is not 
the function of county government in  the State of North Carolina to construct 

28



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 6 of 12 

or maintain roads.  There may be areas of standing  water on the lots after 
ocean overwash or periods of heavy rains that may impede access to the 
individual homesites.  It is the sole responsibility of the owners to provide an 
improved access to their properties." 

 
L. Developer shall furnish the initial purchaser of a newly created lot in the RO2 

District a disclosure statement outlining the maintenance responsibilities for the 
road as provided in GS 136-102.6(f) and as set forth in this section. Said 
disclosure statement shall fully and completely disclose the status (whether public 
or private) of the street upon which the house or lot fronts. If the street is 
designated by the developer and seller as a private street, the developer and seller 
shall include in the disclosure statement an explanation of the consequences and 
responsibility as to maintenance of a private street, and shall fully and accurately 
disclose the party or parties upon whom responsibility for construction and 
maintenance of such street or streets shall rest, and shall further disclose that the 
street or streets will not be constructed to minimum standards, sufficient to allow 
their inclusion on the State highway system for maintenance. 

 
M. In order to minimize the flooding of streets and to assure proper drainage within 

the RO2 zoning district, all subdivision plats, including private access subdivisions 
shall submit a drainage plan prior to final plat approval. 

 
N. The developer shall comply with the following regulations for creation of a private 

access subdivision in the RO2 District in addition to the other requirements of 
private access subdivisions in other districts: 

 
1. When possible, a 45 foot right-of-way shall be given, but in no event shall the 

access be less than 20 feet in width; and, 
 
2. The right-of-way serving the lots must have a graded and drained surface 

stabilized with a minimum of three inches of gravel or aggregate all weather 
base. and stabilized shoulder area. 

 
O. No single right-of-way may serve more than five lots, including any residual 

parcels, if any, regardless of size and require plat approval by the administrator. 
 
P. All proposed Vehicle Right-of-Ways east of Sandfiddler Road within the RO-2 

district shall meet a minimum 30 foot width. 
 
 
Item 2: That section 2.6.3(G) Lot Requirements, be amended as follows by adding the 
underlined text: 
 
G.  Lots in all subdivisions, except lots within major open space subdivisions in the 

RO-2 District, shall not have a depth greater than four times the width measured 
at the front building setback line except where the board finds that the physical 
dimensions of the tract provide no other practical alternative. Lots within major 

29



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 7 of 12 

open space subdivisions in the RO-2 District shall not have a depth greater than 
seven times the width measured at the front building setback line. 

 
 
Item 3: That section 10.4 Open Space Standards, be amended as follows by adding the 
following new underlined text: 
 
10.4.1 Applicability and Definition 
 
A. All major subdivisions shall provide permanent open space.  This shall not apply to 

subdivisions with 20 lots or less or where all the lots are 5 acres or larger. 
 
B. The location of open space shall be consistent with the policies contained in these 

provisions and other long range documents adopted by the Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners. 

 
C. For purposes of this section, open space means an area that: 

 
1. Is not encumbered with any structure unless such structure is for recreational 

purposes available and accessible to all residents of the subdivision or 
general public, including indoor tennis courts, swimming pool and other 
facilities;  

 
2. Is not contained within a street right-of-way or otherwise devoted to use as a 

roadway, parking area not associated with the use of open space or above 
ground waste disposal facilities; 

 
3. Is legally and practicably accessible to the residents of the development out 

of which the open  space is taken; 
 
4. Is not encumbered by underground septic lines, any part of a sewage 

disposal system, or any above ground or below ground structure; 
 
5. May include farmland and tree farms; 
 
6. Is capable of being used and enjoyed for passive recreation, such as walking, 

jogging, or being improved for more active recreational use;  
 
7. Does not include any CAMA wetlands; and, 
 
8. Includes any part of any man-made or natural lakes or ponds provided they 

are completely surrounded by the development and under the ownership of 
the developer or homeowners association. 

 
D. Within the RO-2 district in major open space subdivisions, the transfer of existing 

lots that do not meet the current minimum lot size and width requirements; and 
existing or proposed lots or proposed open space areas, are permitted to transfer 

30



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 8 of 12 

across rights-of-way between adjacent undeveloped parcels in order to facilitate 
subdivision design, for development of detached single-family dwellings that is 
appropriate for the district.  

 
Item 4: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or volatile of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 
Item 5: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 2008. 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    

31



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 9 of 12 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION – September 9, 2008 meeting 
Mr. West stated that the existing lot lines are parallel to the ocean; with this text amendment it 
will extend the lot lines.  Will this create any restrictions to access up and down the beach? 
 
Mr. Webb stated no, the beach is a state declared public access way.    
 
Mr. Keel asked if people who own lots in the same area could they extend their property line. 
 
Mr. Webb stated yes. 
 
Mr. West stated he was not thinking so much as building, but ownership of the property if the 
property line was extended.  Mr. West asked about the transfer density to ocean front lots. 
 
Mr. Webb stated they will still remain at 1.5 acres lots.  The minimum lot size in the RO2 area is 
a 120,000 sq. ft. which is just under three areas. 
 
Mr. West asked what is the benefit of transferring open space? 
 
Mr. Webb stated if they had to do a lot depth to width ratio 4:1 then the lots would be about 260 
feet wide instead of the 100 feet.  
 
Mr. Woody stated that many times wetlands do get put in open space and one advantage of this 
is that you do promote preservation of wetlands. 
 
Ms. Turner asked if the lot that they want to make open space is it already open space. 
 
Mr. Webb stated no that it is a developable lot. 
 
Ms. Turner stated they aren’t trading open space for open space when they are creating open 
space and taking the density from the open space and applying it to the ocean front lots.  
 
Mr. West stated that on the mainland often times open space that is designated open space is 
wetlands, and he agrees with Mr. Woody that the land should be preserved for a quality of 
water, but it has to be preserved anyways because it is wetlands. 
 
Mr. Keel stated that this text amendment will affect many people. 
 
Mr. Webb stated it will have a direct affect on Swan Beach.   
 
Mr. Woody stated he went to a community meeting at the Carova Fire Department to review 
what is being proposed.  There are three things, street closings, text amendment and the 
subdivision proposal. The people are still learning about these issues and there is some 
concern.    
 
Mr. Kovacs stated he has some concerns with the lot depth to width ratio. One reason the 
county went to a 1:4 ratio is because of the long narrow lots that the developer tries to get the 
most for their profit.  
 
Ms. Turner stated that ocean front lots tend to be long and narrow, but would not want to see 
everywhere.   
 

32



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 10 of 12 

Mr. Kovacs stated if you have 7:1 ratio this will take away from street access for the internal lots.  
 
Mr. Bissell stated that the way the UDO is written now there are some internal conflicts with 
hard surface roads.  Mr. Bissell stated it will create a standard for non paved roads. A 30 ft. 
standard for beach access has been addressed.  Mr. Bissell asked if the board had any 
questions. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked who will maintain these roads. 
 
Mr. Bissell stated that an association will be set up and they will be responsible.   
 
Mr. Bissell stated they requested the text amendment go to the TRC, for which text 
amendments don’t typically go, so they can get input from staff members. Mr. Bissell provided 
an overview of the 7:1 ratios.  Mr. Bissell stated they are proposing an open space subdivision.  
Mr. Bissell stated that based on a previous interpretation a few years ago by the Board of 
Adjustment, they could probably do this by right because the board stated that the creation of 
roadways across a parcel doesn’t necessarily create separate parcels.  With this text 
amendment it makes it clearer that the UDO allows it.  
 
Ms. Turner stated it makes sense with the oceanfront lots, but not the inland lots. 
 
The Planning Board is concerned with changing the UDO and the impact it will have. They want 
staff to review it more. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked if the applicant could proceed without the text amendment. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the owner of the property can create a subdivision without the text 
amendment, but to what extent he is not sure.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to table the text amendment for RO2 roads and lots and that board 
members email Mr. Woody their questions so they can be addressed by staff.  Mr. Keel 
seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION – October 14, 2008 meeting 
Mr. Kovacs stated if this text amendment was approved by the Planning Board it would set a 
precedent on the Outer Banks, as well as the mainland requiring the same consideration. 
 
Mr. Webb stated this request is only pertaining to the RO2 zoning district. 
 
Mr. West asked if this was approved, how many new lots would be created. 
 
Mr. Webb stated approximately 548 additional lots. 
 
Mr. Kovacs referred to the ocean lots asking if a storm comes through and washes away part of 
this lot, would they now be non-conforming lots? 
 
Mr. Webb stated it would be regulated by Coastal Management regulations and not county 
regulations.  Once a lot is platted even if at a later date it becomes a non-conforming lot, the 
county ordinance allows you to build a house.  Subdivision approval occurs at a point in time; 

33



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 11 of 12 

basically you take a snapshot of all the ordinances in place at that time and create a 
subdivision.    
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this is approved will the general business go away with this request. 
 
Mr. Webb stated that there is currently no general business zoning in the RO2 area. 
  
Mr. Bissell stated it is a misunderstanding on the 548 lots.  There is no difference in the number 
of lots developed if this amendment is adopted vs. the number of lots developed if it is not 
passed. Mr. Bissell stated it is not 548 lots, but it is closer to none. The minimum lot size is 2.75 
acres and it is just a difference in how you configure the lots.  
 
Mr. Woody stated that unless you had these lots surveyed, you would not know if there is a net 
increase in lots.  
 
Mr. Bissell stated the purpose is not to get more lots; the purpose is to get lots that are more 
appropriate with the configuration of the parcels in the development. Mr. Bissell stated that the 
residents are concerned with minimizing the clearing of the Maritime Forrest in a traditional tract 
of land. The 7:1 ratio is a benefit because you have 70% less roadway than you would have 
with a 4:1 ratio.   
 
Mr. Riggs provided an overview of the history in this area.  
 
Mr. Bissell stated if they went with a 4:1 ratio in Section 2 they would end up with 2 ocean front 
lots instead of 3 and 5 interior lots instead of 4.  
 
Mr. West stated with the 4:1 ratio you would have fewer ocean front lots, but more internal lots.  
 
Ms. Turner asked why the open space language needs to be in the text amendment since there 
are no existing open space parcels. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that zoning districts have standards that are unique to that zoning district, 
which is why the open space language is included in this request.   
 
Mr. Bissell stated they have had a local meeting and there was also a meeting at the local fire 
department which was well attended.  
 
Mr. Woody stated he attended both meetings. Both the applicant and citizens worked diligently 
and tried to find compromises. All parties have worked hard to find a solution. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated she lives in North Swan Beach and she represents the four wheel drive 
community. She attended the meeting at the local fire department and had another meeting with 
Mr. Bissell, Mr. Riggs and Mr. Woody. They had many concerns which were addressed and 
corrected. The biggest concern is the 7:1 reconfiguration. Mr. Bissell stated with the 7:1 ratio 
there will be less roads and maritime forest disturbance. The concept of an open space 
subdivision, if it doesn’t result in more lots, is very appealing if it only involves the 
reconfiguration of lots. Ms. Wilson stated they were very appreciative of Mr. Bissell addressing 
their concerns, including some concerns that were safety issues. Ms. Wilson stated that in all 
fairness, speaking for the community this proposal has presented them with many challenges, 
but they have been discussed and met and they have come to an agreement that they are not 
protesting this request.  

34



 

PB 08-41 RO2 Roads and Lots 
UDO Amendment 

Page 12 of 12 

 
Mr. Webb stated that the applicant can take all these parcels and do a single recombination. By 
doing this amendment, it saves the applicant six to eight months in process.  
 
Ms. Turner stated that in the proposal they are not taking back deeded open space and re-
subdividing it; how do you reword this in the text amendment?  
 
The board discussed how it would be reworded in the text amendment. It was suggested in Item 
3, D. add the word “proposed” before open space. It would read “proposed lots and proposed 
open space”.  
 
Mr. Bissell stated that the proposed open space would be offered to the county and if they did 
not want it, it would be offered to a conservation group. 
 
The board discussed who owns the property from the property line to the ocean. 
 
Mr. Webb stated the property owner, but he cannot restrict public use. 
 
ACTION 
Ms. Turner motioned to recommend approval of the Text Amendment for RO2 Roads and Lots 
with staff recommendations and the addition of language added to Item 3, D. “proposed” open 
spaces. Mr. Winter seconded the motion. Ayes: Ms. Turner, Mr. Bell, Mr. Keel, Mr. Kovacs and 
Mr. Winter.  Nays:  Mr. West and Mr. Midgette. 

35



 
PB-08-53 

Currituck Marina – Residential (R) 
Page 1 of 4 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2008 
Zoning Map Amendment:  

PB 08- 53 Currituck Marina 
 
 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  To rezone 119.96 acres from Agricultural (A) to Residential (R) 
 
LOCATION:  291 West Side Lane, adjacent to Kilmarlic 
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 112, Parcel 3C, Poplar Branch Township 

   
OWNER:     Denny Horgan 

291 West Side Lane 
Powells Point, NC 27966 

 
AGENT/APPLICANT: Tim Morrison/Edward Myers 
    2600 South Virginia Dare Trail 
    Nags Head, NC 27959 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Residential (R) 
 
ZONING HISTORY: The property was zoned Agricultural (A) on April 2, 1989.  

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Undeveloped Conservation 
SOUTH: Albemarle Sound N/A 
EAST: Kilmarlic Subdivision Limited Service 
WEST: Undeveloped Conservation 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped  
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: Mixed use development with public marina 
. 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service and 

Conservation within the Point Harbor Sub-Area.   
  

Areas designated as Full Service are those parts of the county where a 
broad range of infrastructure and service investments have been 
provided or will be made available by the public and/or private sectors. 

36



 
PB-08-53 

Currituck Marina – Residential (R) 
Page 2 of 4 

Central wastewater treatment and disposal whether public or 
community is considered reasonable in the Full Service Areas.   
 
Base development densities for the Full Service Area is contemplated to 
be 2 units per acre but could be increased to 3-4 units per acre through 
overlay zoning.  Commercial development in Full Service Areas should 
be designed to protect and preserve the existing community in scale, 
architectural style, materials, landscaping, and site design. 
 
The purpose of the Conservation class is to provide for the long-term 
management and protection of significant, limited, or irreplaceable 
areas. Proper management is needed to conserve the natural, cultural, 
recreational, scenic or biologically productive values of these areas. 
 
The policy emphasis of the Point Harbor Sub-Area is to allow this area 
to continue to evolve as a full service community, but with better 
attention to the planning needed to protect residential areas and the 
natural features that make the area so attractive.  Vegetative buffers 
should be required/maintained along shorelines to preserve public 
access and open space at the waters edge and to protect water quality 
in the sound 
 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this request: 

 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to occur 
at densities appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND DENSITY 
FACTORS shall include whether the development is within an 
environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of sewage 
treatment available to the site, the adequacy of transportation facilities 
providing access to the site, and the proximity of the site to existing and 
planned urban services.   
 
POLICY AG6: For areas experiencing intense development pressure, 
new residential development may be allowed to locate in COMPACT, 
VILLAGE-LIKE CLUSTERS, PREFERABLY NEAR EXISTING, NON-
AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES AND SERVICES, or in other locations 
that will not interfere with resource production activities. Overall density 
shall remain very low, with permanent open space, dedicated during the 
development review process, surrounding such clusters of homes. 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The site is located within the Jarvisburg Elementary School District. The 

Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department provides fire protection for 
this area. Public water is available to this site from the Kilmarlic 
Subdivision. 

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The site is accessible by vehicle from West Side Lane and presumably 

by boat from the Intracoastal Waterway. 
 
FLOOD ZONE: The entire site is located in Flood Zone AE(7). 

37



 
PB-08-53 

Currituck Marina – Residential (R) 
Page 3 of 4 

 
WETLANDS: Approximately 95 acres of wetlands are located on the site (including 

the existing lake and canal).  The remaining 23 acres primarily consists 
of uplands. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

primarily non-suitable soils and limited amounts of suitable soils. 
 

 
STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the request to rezone 119.96 acres from 

Agricultural (A) to Residential (R) for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed request is in general compliance with Full Service 
designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and the Point Harbor Sub-
Area Policy Emphasis. 

 
2. The subject property is adjacent to the Kilmarlic subdivision and 

is in keeping with the character of the surrounding area.  
 

3. Adequate infrastructure capacity such as improved roads and public 
water are directly accessible to the site. 

 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
No discussion. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations to rezone approximately 119.96 
acres from Agricultural (A) to Residential (R) according to the 2006 Land Use Plan. Ms. Turner seconded 
the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

38



 
PB-08-53 

Currituck Marina – Residential (R) 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 

39



 
PB-08-48 

Currituck Marina – CD-PUD 
Page 1 of 8 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING DATE: November 17, 2008 
Zoning Map Amendment:  

PB 08- 48 Currituck Marina 
 
 

TYPE OF REQUEST:  To establish a Conditional District – Planned Unit Development Overlay 
Zone (CD-PUD) on 119.96 acres 

 
LOCATION:  291 West Side Lane, adjacent to Kilmarlic 
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 112, Parcel 3C, Poplar Branch Township 

   
OWNER:     Denny Horgan 

291 West Side Lane 
Powells Point, NC 27966 

 
AGENT/APPLICANT: Tim Morrison/Edward Myers 
    2600 South Virginia Dare Trail 
    Nags Head, NC 27959 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Agricultural (A): PB 08-53 if approved will establish Residential (R) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Conditional District-Planned Unit Development Overlay (CD-PUD) 
 
ZONING CONDITIONS: Uses 

1. Limited to mixed residential uses, neighborhood serving retail uses, 
restaurants, traditional uses associated with a marina, and other 
items contained in the Currituck Marina Conceptual Plan. 

2. Maximum gross residential density shall not exceed 2.0 dwelling 
units per acre. 

3. No more than 50 residential dwelling units shall receive a certificate 
of occupancy prior to the public marina being fully permitted and 
approved by any local, state, and federal regulatory or permitting 
agency. 

4. No more than 100 residential dwelling units shall receive a certificate 
of occupancy prior to the marina being fully operational and open to 
the public. 

5. No more than 150 residential dwelling units shall receive a certificate 
of occupancy prior to the commercial components of the request 
being approved and fully constructed. 

Transportation 
1. Multimodal pathways a minimum of six feet in width shall be 

provided throughout the development.  This shall include 
interconnected sidewalks, bikeways and natural trails. 

40



 
PB-08-48 

Currituck Marina – CD-PUD 
Page 2 of 8 

2. Internal pedestrian circulation shall be required for all commercial 
areas through the use of clearly defined walkways. 

Landscaping/Screening 
1. All inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands shall remain undisturbed.  

Delineated CAMA, 404 and 401 wetlands shall be placed in a 
conservation easement or preservation trust preventing individual 
ownership or development. 

2. There shall be no development, land disturbing, or logging activities 
in areas designated by the 2006 Land Use Plan as Conservation 

3. Existing mature trees within 300 feet of the mean high water mark or 
100 feet of any adjacent property line shall be identified as a tree 
conservation area and be preserved to the extent practicable. 

4. When developing within 300 feet of the shoreline, precedence 
should be given to “soft” stabilization approaches including but not 
limited to preservation of existing vegetation, creation of natural, 
living shorelines for areas needing stabilization, and establishment 
of vegetative buffers. 

5. In commercial areas every parking space shall be entirely located 
within 120 feet of a landscape island containing a minimum of 2 
canopy trees, a minimum of 2 inches in caliper at time of planting.  
Landscape islands shall be a minimum of 10 feet in width and 400 
square feet in size. 

6. In commercial areas pedestrian plazas or similar shaded outdoor 
seating areas shall be provided at a rate of 100 square feet for every 
2,000 square feet of gross floor area. 

Site Design/Architectural 
1. The proposed development will be in accordance with the Currituck 

Marina conceptual site plan. 
2. Maximum size of an individual commercial building shall not exceed 

10,000 square feet of gross floor area. 
3. Residential structures shall include vertical and horizontal relief in 

buildings, including but not limited to façade articulation and other 
architectural elements that add visual interest; variation in exterior 
architectural materials or styles; and, inclusion of front porches, 
projecting bays, or vestibules. 

4. Commercial structures, including mixed use structures, shall be 
subject to the following requirements: 
a. Building facades shall incorporate the traditional architectural 

style or vernacular of the general area. 
b. Large expanses of blank walls shall be avoided.  Facades shall 

incorporate architectural elements that add visual interest, 
including but not limited to variation in exterior materials; 
functioning windows and doorways; and, projecting elements 
such as eaves, cornices, canopies, bays, shadow lines, 
overhangs, porticos and colonnades. 

c. Corrugated metal building materials shall not be permitted.  
Architectural grade finished metal may be used as an accent 
material or on elevations not visible from a right-of-way or area 
designated for residential uses. 

 

41



 
PB-08-48 

Currituck Marina – CD-PUD 
Page 3 of 8 

Water Access 
1. Public access to the waterfront and Albemarle Sound shall required 

and include at a minimum a marina, public boat launching and 
parking, and multimodal pathways. 

2. The marina shall include docking for a minimum of ten vessels. 
3. The marina shall participate and become a Certified Clean Marina in 

the North Carolina Clean Marina program. 
4. No permanent structures shall be built within 100 feet of the mean 

high water mark, or on or over a pier. 
5. Waterfront property within 100 feet of the mean high water mark 

shall remain in common open space. 
 
DENSITY: Approximate gross density (including wetlands) – 2.0 du/acre 
 Approximate net density (excluding wetlands) – 10.4 du/acre 
 
ZONING HISTORY: The property was zoned Agricultural (A) on April 2, 1989.  

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Undeveloped Conservation 
SOUTH: Albemarle Sound N/A 
EAST: Kilmarlic Subdivision Limited Service 
WEST: Undeveloped Conservation 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped  
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: Mixed use development with public marina 
. 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service and 

Conservation within the Point Harbor Sub-Area.   
  

Areas designated as Full Service are those parts of the county where a 
broad range of infrastructure and service investments have been 
provided or will be made available by the public and/or private sectors. 
Central wastewater treatment and disposal whether public or 
community is considered reasonable in the Full Service Areas.   
 
Base development densities for the Full Service Area is contemplated to 
be 2 units per acre but could be increased to 3-4 units per acre through 
overlay zoning.  Commercial development in Full Service Areas should 
be designed to protect and preserve the existing community in scale, 
architectural style, materials, landscaping, and site design. 
 
The purpose of the Conservation class is to provide for the long-term 
management and protection of significant, limited, or irreplaceable 
areas. Proper management is needed to conserve the natural, cultural, 
recreational, scenic or biologically productive values of these areas. 
 

42



 
PB-08-48 

Currituck Marina – CD-PUD 
Page 4 of 8 

The policy emphasis of the Point Harbor Sub-Area is to allow this area 
to continue to evolve as a full service community, but with better 
attention to the planning needed to protect residential areas and the 
natural features that make the area so attractive.  Vegetative buffers 
should be required/maintained along shorelines to preserve public 
access and open space at the waters edge and to protect water quality 
in the sound 
 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this request: 

 
POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to occur 
at densities appropriate for the location. LOCATION AND DENSITY 
FACTORS shall include whether the development is within an 
environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of sewage 
treatment available to the site, the adequacy of transportation facilities 
providing access to the site, and the proximity of the site to existing and 
planned urban services.   
 
The applicant has included a zoning condition that prohibits development within 
areas of the site designated as Conservation Area by the 2006 Land Use Plan.  
There is county water and fire protection readily available to the site, as well as 
vehicular access from a State maintained road. The surrounding land uses include 
the Kilmarlic subdivision and golf course, a regional health and racquet club, and 
approximately 25 acres of land zoned for multifamily uses (4 du/acre).  Centralized 
sewage treatment is also proposed for the development. 
 
POLICY PA1: Public access to the sound and ocean waters of 
Currituck County is essential to the quality of life of residents and 
visitors, as well as the economy of the area. The County supports the 
establishment of ADDITIONAL PUBLIC AND PRIVATE ACCESS 
opportunities to the waters of Currituck County.  
 
By zoning condition, the subject property is required to provide public access to the 
Albemarle Sound.  The construction of residential dwelling units is contingent upon 
successful permitting and operation of the marina. 
 
POLICY PA5: PUBLIC AND PRIVATE MARINAS offering access to 
area waters should be encouraged when developed in accordance with 
the CAMA specific use standards for marinas (i.e. docks for more than 
10 vessels). Marinas shall not be approved, however, that are 
incompatible with nearby land uses or whose designs fail to meet the 
environmental quality and development standards of the County’s 
Unified Development Ordinance. 
 
The zoning conditions will require the marina to provide docking for a minimum of 
10 vessels and participate and become a Certified Clean Marina in the North 
Carolina Clean Marina program. 
 
POLICY CD8: MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENTS, properly planned from 
the outset, which allow for a compatible mixture of residential and non-
residential uses with a pedestrian scale and design, are encouraged. 
 

43



 
PB-08-48 

Currituck Marina – CD-PUD 
Page 5 of 8 

The request includes a mixture of uses including townhomes, condominiums, retail 
uses, a restaurant, and a public marina.  Pedestrian elements have been included 
to ensure the development is walkable.  
 
POLICY WQ6: Currituck County supports the retention or preservation 
of VEGETATED BUFFERS along the edge of drainage ways, streams 
and other components of the estuarine system as an effective, low cost 
means of protecting water quality. 
 
The zoning conditions require the preservation of mature trees around the 
perimeter of the site.  When developing within 300 feet of the shoreline, 
precedence should be given to “soft” stabilization approaches.  Additionally, 
property within 100 feet of the shoreline shall remain in common open space. 
 
POLICY ML3: The interests of Mainland Area residents in having 
ACCESS TO THE AREA’S OCEAN AND ESTUARINE WATERS shall 
be fostered through County actions to increase the number of additional 
public access sites at a rate commensurate with the population growth 
of the Currituck County. Included in the actions taken to increase public 
access shall be a consideration given to transportation needs, including 
boat docks and ferry services. 
 
The subject property will provide the county’s first direct western public access 
south of the Intracoastal Waterway. 

 
POLICY ES2: NON-COASTAL WETLANDS, including FRESHWATER 
SWAMPS, AND INLAND, NON-TIDAL WETLANDS, shall be conserved 
for the important role they play in absorbing floodwaters, filtering 
pollutants from stormwater runoff, recharging the ground water table, 
and providing critical habitat for many plant and animal species. 
 
By zoning condition, all inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands shall remain 
undisturbed and will be placed in a conservation easement or preservation trust 
preventing individual ownership or development. 
 
POLICY WQ5: Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES 
OF THE SITE, including existing topography and significant existing 
vegetation, shall be encouraged.  COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL 
WETLANDS shall not be considered part of a lot’s acreage for the 
purpose of determining minimum lot size or development density. 
 
The permitted gross density of 2 dwelling units per acre is based on the total 
acreage of the tract.  Although wetlands are typically included in the county’s UDO 
density calculations (gross), the Division of Coastal Management has indicated 
they will exclude wetlands from their density calculations (net).  This creates a 
conflict between the UDO and Land Use Plan, which may arise during the CAMA 
Major permitting process. 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The site is located within the Jarvisburg Elementary School District. The 

Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department (Kilmarlic Station) provides 
fire protection for this area.  EMS coverage is provided from the Grandy 

44



 
PB-08-48 

Currituck Marina – CD-PUD 
Page 6 of 8 

Volunteer Fire Department Station.  Public water is available to this site 
from the Kilmarlic Subdivision. 

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The site is accessible by vehicle from West Side Lane and presumably 

by boat from the Intracoastal Waterway. 
 
FLOOD ZONE: The entire site is located in Flood Zone AE(7). 
 
WETLANDS: Approximately 95+/- acres of wetlands are located on the site (including 

the existing lake and canal).  The remaining 23+/- acres primarily 
consists of uplands. 

 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

primarily non-suitable soils.  There are limited amounts of suitable soils 
which are located in the areas proposed for development. 

 

 
STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the request to establish a Conditional 

District – Planned Unit Development Overlay Zone (CD-PUD) on 119.96 
acres for the following reasons: 

 
1. The proposed request is in general compliance with Full Service 

designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and the Point Harbor Sub-
Area Policy Emphasis. 

 
2. The proposed zoning conditions are consistent with the objectives of 

the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance and 2006 
Land Use Plan, and promote compatibility between the subject 
property and surrounding area. 

 
3. This request establishes the mainland’s first direct western public 

access south of the Intracoastal Waterway.  Additionally, the 
construction of residential units is contingent upon proper permitting 
and operation of the marina, which includes becoming a Certified 
Clean Marina in the North Carolina Clean Marina program. (LUP 
Policies PA1, PA5, ML3) 

 
4. The subject property is adjacent to the Kilmarlic subdivision and is in 

keeping with the character of the area.  Surrounding land uses 
include a golf course, a regional health and racquet club, and 
approximately 25 acres of land zoned for multifamily uses. (LUP 
Policy HN1) 

 
5. Adequate infrastructure capacity such as improved roads and public 

water are directly accessible to the site.  The applicant is also 
proposing a centralized wastewater system which will limit 
environmental impacts on environmentally sensitive areas. (LUP 
Policy PP2) 

45



 
PB-08-48 

Currituck Marina – CD-PUD 
Page 7 of 8 

 
 
 

6. As depicted on a conceptual site plan submitted as part of the 
application, this request includes a mixture of uses including 
townhomes, condominiums, retail uses, a restaurant, and a public 
marina. (LUP Policy CD8) 

 
7. All inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands will remain undisturbed 

and placed in a conservation easement or preservation trust 
preventing individual ownership or development. (LUP policy ES2) 

 
8. The preservation of mature trees around the perimeter of the site 

and adjacent to the shoreline is required.  Additionally, property 
within 100 feet of the shoreline shall remain in common open space. 
(LUP Policy WQ6) 

 
 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. West asked how many restaurants will be on the site. 
 
Mr. Woody stated there is one restaurant near the waterfront and conceivably another could locate in the 
commercial building. 
 
Mr. West asked if public access to the water will be free to the public. 
 
Mr. Woody stated it will be a free public access where you could launch your boat, but you could not 
dock your boat without a fee. 
 
Mr. West stated this is a good example of what they intended conditional use zoning to be, which spells 
out what they are going to do.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this is an age restrictive development. 
 
Mr. Woody stated no. 
 
Mr. Morrison stated the development will be geared towards an active retirement age.  
 
Mr. West asked what the total number of units is. 
 
Mr. Morrison stated 240 units. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations to establish a Conditional 
District-Planned Unit Development Overlay Zone (CD-PUD) on approximately 119.96 acres according to 
the 2006 Land Use Plan. Mr. Winter seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

46



 
PB-08-48 

Currituck Marina – CD-PUD 
Page 8 of 8 

 

47



48



Jucx cG CurrituCk COUnty County Engineer
Post OfficeBox 38

Currituck North Cazoina 27929

2522326035

1668

To Board of Commissioners

From Eric T Weatherly PE
Currituck County Engineer

Ref RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser
Bid Award Recommendation
Mainland Water System Upgrades

Date November 7 2008

Background
As part of the Mainland Water System Upgrades bids were received for the new

Reverse Osmosis RO Water Treatment OutFall Pipe and Diffuser Funds have been
allocated for this work in the Mainland Water System budget

Analysis
Attached is a recommendation of award letter from the consulting engineer Arcadis
This letter includes the list of bidders and a breakdown of each bid The
recommendation is to award the project to Mad Dawg Inc in the amount of 982000

The project consists of a 12 pipe that will be directional bored from the shoreline at the
end of Newbem Landing Road out 2000 into the Albemarle Sound The pipe will exit

on the bottom of the Sound where a 40 long by 12 diffuser pipe will be installed
Pilings will be installed along the diffuser for protection The diffuser will be located on

the bottom of the Sound in 7 of water

The Mainland Wafter System Expansion project is going well and remains on schedule

Although this bid was higher than expected there are funds in the overall Mainland
Water System Upgrades fund to allow us to move fonnranl with this bid

Conclusion
We concur with the recxmmendation of award for the outfall pipe and diffuser With
your approval of the award the County Manager will execute the contracts for
construction of the project

49



ARAD1 S ARCADIS GBMof North Carolina

7itGCrtJtc2Fl1Ql1tetffj Inc

801 Corporate Center Drive

Suite 300

Raleigh

Mr Daniel F Scanlon 11 North Carolina 278075073

Manager Currituck County Tel 919 854 1282

POSt Office BOX 39 Fax 919 854 5448

Currituck North Carolina 27929
wuuwarcadisuscom

Subject
WATER RESOURCES

Recommendation ofAward

Mainland Water Treatment Plant RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser

Dear Mr Scanlon

Date

On September 4 2008 no bids were received for the Mainland Water Treatment
29 October2008

Plant RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser project The project wasreadvertised and

two bids were received on September 16 2008 The low bidder wasTA Loving
contact

David Briley
Company with a bid of117900000 well above the Countysproject budget of

440000 Bid rejection notices were sent to the two bidders on October 3 2008 Eei

and the project wasreadvertised with modifications to the project On October
142

28 2008 three bids were received and opened Two bids are believed to be Emal

responsive as set forth in the Contract Documents Seaside Environmental Davidbriley@arcadis
Constructors inc the third highest bidder did not acknowledge Addendum 3 uscom

and their bid wasnot considered responsive A certified tabulation ofthese bids

is attached
our rer

NC7060212000

The Low Bidder was Mad Dawg nc with a base bid amount of98200000 for

constructing the 2000 ftRO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser

All required permits for the construction of the Mainland Water Treatment Plant

RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser have been received including NC DOT Rightof
Way Encroachment Agreement CAMA Major Permit 401 Water Quality
Certification USACOE 404 Permit and US Coast Guard Private Aids to

Navigation Permit Temporary construction easements have also been obtained
from property owners No other permits were required for the RO Outfall Pipe
and Diffuser

The completion ofthe RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser project is critical to the

startup ofthe Mainland WaterTreatment Plant RO Expansion expected to be

substantially complete by May 12 2009 To maximize the early completion

50



Mr Daniel Scanlon

29 October 2008

bonus offered Crowder Construction Company must complete the RO

Expansion by March 12 2009 Further modifications to the project scope may

compromise the design andor quality ofconstruction and will delay the

construction schedule Based upon these comments we recommend that the

County award the project to Mad Dawg Inc in the amount of98200000 in

accordance with the certified bid tab

Sincerely

ARCADIS GMofNorth Carolina Inc

David S Briley PE
Project Manager

Page
awwumeo2anawawwrrzaooFmuoesanvteneenaawmAOa

22

51



M

O

m
6
a

O
O

O

Nc c gQ b N

e
Z

N

Z Z

c o
w O Q pU ac

ano
yypU 4 m

C p

C O O O O O
g s

o
p

g O

w i N M N NV

g
N

i
I O

i

c

c
0

O g o
o

M N

o

Iff

o

O O

o

O O
o

O
c

1
m

N

W N W w
O V

O
J

f A
M W N

H

O

V N

a7f
N
O v

m v o g g c

c o o o o o po
Ooi y

D Q p p W a N
O O D

6A
M N N W

N

L
W G
m u

N

H

N o aM w
N E a un Y Q

w
O L O M L y

o 0
wI

a
O

c c
C

a
o a

I y G I t b p 4 w
LL

O e
p
c o a N O

M C O C r W L N C O

o o a c a c a a a m rLS u Q E ro
i m m 3 w tee

w
0 3c

C

v

m
c

gyp v w6 E 7s E E a o m m
w o

0 o
x s

E c

r

E
wi

E
v
E

ui v
E

id

E

i a
E

m

E

m u q

N T

d m

2

a c

o

v o
U

U

NZ
o O

R
7 0

N
p

ma
a

52



SCHEDULE A 

PPAB 1435405v3 

MEMBER WASTE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement (the “Member Agreement”) made and entered into this _____ day of 

_______________, 2008, by and between the Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management 

Authority, a regional solid waste management authority organized and existing pursuant to the 

laws of the State of North Carolina (the “Authority”) and Currituck County, a political 

subdivision organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina and a 

member of the Authority (“Currituck County”). 

RECITALS 

 It is hereby ascertained, determined and declared by the parties that: 

A. Currituck County, as a unit of local government, is a member of the Authority 

pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 153A, Article 22 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

B. The Authority has entered into a Waste Supply and Disposal Agreement dated 

October 1, 2008 (the “Authority Agreement”) with Republic Services of North Carolina, LLC 

d/b/a East Carolina Environmental (“Republic”) relating to the disposal of the Authority’s Waste 

in the East Carolina Environmental Landfill in Bertie County, North Carolina. 

C. In consideration of Republic’s promises in the Authority Agreement, the parties 

desire to establish certain responsibilities of Currituck County regarding supplying its Waste to 

Republic, and, at the time this Member Agreement becomes effective, desire to terminate the 

prior Member Waste Management Agreement between Currituck County and the Authority 

dated July 16, 1993 (“Prior Member Agreement”). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants expressed 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.  Unless otherwise defined herein, the capitalized terms in this 

Member Agreement shall have the same definitions as specified in the Authority Agreement. 

53



 2 
PPAB 1435405v3 

2. Purposes.  The purposes of this Member Agreement are those set forth in the 

Recitals above and made a part hereof. 

3. Duties and Responsibilities of Currituck County. 

  3.1 No Withdrawal from the Authority; Ratification of Charter.  Currituck 

County hereby agrees that it will not withdraw or attempt to withdraw from or cause the 

dissolution of the Authority during the Term of the Authority Agreement.  Currituck County 

hereby ratifies, affirms and adopts each and every Article, including subparts thereof, of the 

Resolution Establishing the Authority and the Charter as it has been amended, and said 

Resolution and Charter are hereby incorporated herein by reference. 

3.2 Responsibilities. 

A. Currituck County shall adopt all necessary solid waste 

management plans, flow control ordinances and franchise ordinances, will execute all necessary 

solid waste management agreements, and will seek a designation by DENR of the Service Area 

as a designated geographic area within the meaning of the Solid Waste Management Act, to the 

extent allowed by law and consistent with the Constitutions of North Carolina and the United 

States of America, in order to obligate all such Waste to be delivered to a Transfer Station for 

disposal by Republic or directly to the Facility.  Specifically, Currituck County shall, by March 

1, 2009, adopt a franchise ordinance approved by Republic that requires all Waste in Currituck 

County’s geographical jurisdiction to be delivered to a Transfer Station for disposal by Republic 

or directly to the Facility and requires all waste collectors and transporters of all Waste in 

Currituck County’s geographical jurisdiction to obtain a license to collect and transport Waste 

within Currituck County’s geographical jurisdiction.  The parties authorize Republic as a third 

party beneficiary of this Member Agreement to enforce the provisions of this Member 

54



 3 
PPAB 1435405v3 

Agreement as against either or both of the parties to this Member Agreement and waste 

collectors and transporters of waste in Currituck County’s geographical jurisdiction. 

B. If for any reason the Authority no longer exists or for any reason 

the Authority or its Members are no longer bound by the Authority Agreement excluding a 

breach by Republic thereof, Currituck County shall:  (i) continue to supply its Waste to the 

Facility for a term no shorter than the remaining duration of the Authority Agreement; (ii) 

continue to pay fees to Republic in accordance with the schedule of fees set forth in the 

Authority Agreement for the disposal of Currituck County’s Waste; and (iii) enter into a written 

contract with Republic setting forth the County’s obligations under (i) and (ii) herein and such 

other terms and provisions as can be agreed upon in good faith negotiations.  Currituck County 

agrees that, in the event it is necessary to contract with Republic as provided in this paragraph, 

the terms and provisions of such contract are intended to be the same as or as similar as possible 

to those in the Authority Agreement.  If the provisions of this paragraph are held, whether by 

preliminary injunction or otherwise, to be unconstitutional, invalid, illegal or unenforceable in 

any respect, then Currituck County shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, its Waste to the 

Facility and pay the fees for such disposal set forth in the Authority Agreement if such Waste is 

to be disposed of in the State of North Carolina. 

4. Term.  This Member Agreement shall be effective when both of the following 

occur:  (i) this Member Agreement is approved and executed by the respective governing bodies 

of the Authority and Currituck County and delivered to the respective parties; and (ii) The 

Authority Agreement becomes effective on the Effective Date pursuant to Section 1.6 of the 

Authority Agreement.  At the time this Member Agreement becomes effective, the Prior Member 

Agreement terminates.  This Member Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for the 

Term of the Authority Agreement. 

55



 4 
PPAB 1435405v3 

5. Amendment.  This Member Agreement may not be modified or amended except 

by subsequent written modification or amendment approved and authorized by Republic and 

each of the parties. 

6. Similar Services.  Currituck County shall not establish or operate a solid waste 

management facility within the Service Area offering the same or similar services as those 

provided by Republic in the Authority Agreement; provided, however, that nothing herein shall 

prevent Currituck County from implementing waste recycling and reduction programs. 

7. Ratification.  Currituck County hereby ratifies and affirms the Authority 

Agreement.  Currituck County hereby also agrees to provide the Authority with all Waste 

generated:  (i) within Currituck County’s geographic jurisdiction; and (ii) within the geographic 

jurisdiction of all incorporated municipalities within Currituck County’s geographic boundaries 

which have contracted with Currituck County to become Contracting Municipalities.  Currituck 

County hereby authorizes the Authority, on behalf of Currituck County, to provide written 

consent to modify or amend the Authority Agreement at any such times as the Authority and 

Republic, in their discretion, seek to modify or amend the Authority Agreement. 

8. Severability.  If any of the provisions of this Member Agreement are be held, for 

any reason, to be unconstitutional, unenforceable, invalid, or illegal in any respect, such decision 

shall not affect or impair any of the remaining provisions of this Member Agreement, and the 

parties shall, to the extent they deem to be necessary and appropriate, take such actions as are 

necessary to correct any such unconstitutional, unenforceable, invalid, or illegal provision.  It is 

hereby declared to be the intent of the parties that this Member Agreement would have been 

approved and executed had such unconstitutional, unenforceable invalid or illegal provision been 

excluded therefrom. 

56



 5 
PPAB 1435405v3 

9. Entire Agreement.  The Member Agreement and the Authority Agreement (any 

agreements referenced in Section 1.6 of the Authority Agreement) contain the entire agreement 

between the parties, and cancel and supersede all prior negotiations, representations, 

understandings, or agreements, either written or oral, between the parties with respect to the 

subject matter hereof, with the exception of the Authority Agreement.  Any statement, oral or 

written, made by any party or agent of any party that is not contained in the Member Agreement 

and Authority Agreement shall not be valid or binding. 

10. Benefit and Dispute Resolution.  With the consent of the Authority, either 

Republic or the County may deal directly with each other in carrying out the terms of this 

Member Agreement.  It is the express intention of the parties that Republic and the County 

attempt to resolve such issues or disputes by dealing through the Authority, and only after either 

party has exhausted all reasonable effects to address and resolve such issues or disputes directly 

with the Authority, shall either party pursue any right or remedy against each other.  The parties 

hereto acknowledge and agree that Republic is a third party beneficiary of the terms and 

provisions contained in this Member Agreement. 

11. Covenant of Further Assurances.  Currituck County agrees that from and after the 

date of execution hereof, it will, upon the request of the Authority, execute and deliver such 

other documents and instruments and take such other actions as may be reasonably required to 

carry out the purpose and intent of this Member Agreement and the Authority Agreement. 

12.   Assignment.  No assignment, delegation, transfer, or novation of this Member 

Agreement or any part thereof shall be made or permitted by Currituck County unless approved 

in writing by the Authority and Republic. 

13. Governing Law.  This Member Agreement shall be governed by, construed  and 

enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina and Pitt County, North 

57



 6 
PPAB 1435405v3 

Carolina and the United States District Court for the Eastern District Court for the Eastern 

District of North Carolina shall be the sole and exclusive jurisdictions for the resolution of any 

disputes that relate to or arise under this Member Agreement. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Member Agreement on 

the date first above written, the same having been approved by the respective governing bodies 

of both the Authority and Currituck County. 

[Signatures on following page] 

58



SCHEDULE A 

PPAB 1435405v3 

 

ALBEMARLE REGIONAL SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:  
Chairman 

MEMBER 
 
CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH 
CAROLINA 
 
By:  

Chairman of Board of Commissioners 
  
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:  
 
Its:  

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:  
 
Its:  

  
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the 
manner required by the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
By:  
      County Finance Officer 

 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the 
manner required by the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
By:  
      Authority Finance Officer  

 

59



SCHEDULE B 

 
PPAB 1434609v3 

AGREEMENT FOR OPERATION OF TRANSFER STATION 

This agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this ___ day of _______, 

2008 by and between Currituck County, a political subdivision organized and existing pursuant 

to the laws of North Carolina (the “County”) and Republic Services of North Carolina, LLC, a 

North Carolina limited liability company d/b/a East Carolina Environmental (“Republic”). 

RECITALS 

 It is hereby ascertained, determined and declared by the parties that: 

A. The County, as a unit of local government, is a member of the Albemarle 

Regional Solid Waste Management Authority (“Authority”) pursuant to the provisions of 

Chapter 153A, Article 22 of the North Carolina General Statutes and owns an existing Transfer 

Station. 

B. The Authority has entered into a Waste Supply and Disposal Agreement dated 

October 1, 2008 (the “Authority Agreement”) with Republic relating to the disposal of the 

Authority’s Waste in the East Carolina Environmental Landfill in Bertie County, North Carolina.  

C. The County, the Authority and Republic desire that the County continue to retain 

ownership of the Transfer Station and that Republic continue to contract directly with the County 

to operate the Transfer Station for the benefit of the Authority. 

D. The County and Republic desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of 

setting forth the terms and conditions under which Republic will operate the County’s Transfer 

Station, and desire to terminate the prior Transfer Station Operation Agreement between the 

County and Republic dated October 4, 1993 (“Prior Transfer Station Operation Agreement”). 

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the fees to be paid Republic pursuant to the 

Authority Agreement and the mutual agreement contained herein, the County and Repubic agree 

as follows: 

60



 
 2 
PPAB 1434609v3 

1. Definitions.  Unless otherwise defined herein, the capitalized terms in this 

Agreement shall have the same definitions as specified in the Authority Agreement.  “Transfer 

Station” as used in this Agreement shall mean the County’s existing Transfer Station, including 

the building, all improvements and fixtures within the building, and the surrounding real 

property owned by the County upon which the building is located, as more particularly described 

on Exhibit A.   

2. Term.  This Agreement shall be effective when both of the following occur:  (i) 

this Agreement is approved and executed by Republic and the County and delivered to the 

respective parties; and (ii) The Authority Agreement becomes effective on the Effective Date 

pursuant to Section 1.6 of the Authority Agreement.  At the time this Agreement becomes 

effective, the Prior Transfer Station Agreement terminates.  This Agreement shall continue in 

full force and effect for the Term of the Authority Agreement. 

3. Right of Access.  Republic shall have full right and unrestricted access to the 

Transfer Station for the purpose of operating the Transfer Station and conducting its business as 

contemplated under this Agreement and the Authority Agreement. 

4. Compliance with Laws.  Republic shall not permit the Transfer Station to be used 

in any unlawful manner, and will comply in all material respects, with any and all federal, state 

and local laws and operating permit issued to the Transfer Station by DENR, concerning the 

operation of the Transfer Station, subject to Republic’s right to contest in good faith the 

interpretation, application and enforcement of any such laws or permit. 

5. Entry and Inspection.  The County, its agents or representatives may enter the 

Transfer Station at reasonable times upon prior notice to Republic to inspect the Transfer Station.  

61



 
 3 
PPAB 1434609v3 

Any such entry by the County, its agents and representatives shall not unreasonably interfere 

with Republic’s business.   

6. Utilities.  Republic shall promptly pay all utilities used or consumed by Republic 

at the Transfer Station.  Republic shall not be required to provide or replace any utility lines or 

facilities at the Transfer Station. 

7. Taxes.  Republic shall pay annually any personal property taxes for its personal 

property at the Transfer Station.  The County shall pay annually when due any real estate taxes 

and assessments attributable to the Transfer Station (unless exempt from taxation).   

8. Trade Fixtures.  The County agrees that no part of any trade fixtures erected or 

placed by Republic at the Transfer Station shall be or become, or be considered as being affixed 

to or a part of the Transfer Station and any such trade fixtures shall be and remain the property of 

Republic and may be removed by Republic at any time in Republic’s discretion.  Any damage 

caused by Republic’s removal shall be paid by Republic. 

9. Transfer Station Operation.  Republic shall have the right to operate, use, 

maintain, repair and alter the Transfer Station, at Republic’s expense.  Republic shall operate the 

Transfer Station in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Authority Agreement and 

according to generally accepted standards for the operation of transfer stations, under the 

supervision of qualified and trained transfer station personnel.  Republic shall accept at the 

Transfer Station all Solid Waste generated within the County.  In the event Republic detects any 

Excluded Waste at the Transfer Station, Republic shall have the right to reject such Excluded 

Waste and to require the party delivering such Excluded Waste to remove and be responsible for 

all costs of removal of such Excluded Waste.   

62



 
 4 
PPAB 1434609v3 

With Republic’s approval, the County may, upon written application to Republic, 

temporarily stage Recyclable Materials at the Transfer Station so long as the County’s staging of 

Recyclable Materials does not interfere with Republic’s operation of the Transfer Station.  If 

Republic concludes in its sole discretion that the County’s staging of Recyclable Materials of the 

Transfer Station is interfering with Republic’s operation of the Transfer Station, Republic may 

require the County to cease the staging upon written notice to the County. 

10. Permits.  The County shall obtain and maintain any and all permits necessary for 

the existence and operation of the Transfer Station.  The parties acknowledge that the Transfer 

Station was constructed prior to enactment of certain laws and regulations and, in the event any 

modifications to the Transfer Station must be made to bring the Transfer Station into compliance 

with current or future laws, the cost of such modifications shall be paid by the County and such 

other counties and municipalities which use the Transfer Station pursuant to the terms of the 

Authority Agreement.   

11. Assignment.  The County recognizes that Republic intends to assign or 

subcontract the right to operate Transfer Station to a third party and hereby consents to any such 

assignment or subcontract. 

12. Maintenance.  Republic shall be responsible for normal maintenance of areas 

inside the Transfer Station building, including the unloading/loading area and trailer storage area.  

The County shall be responsible for all other maintenance of the Transfer Station, including 

roads and areas outside the building.   

13. Alterations.  Republic, at its expense may (but is not obligated to) make 

alterations, additions and improvements to the Transfer Station during the term of this 

Agreement with the Authority’s consent on behalf of the County, which consent shall not be 

63



 
 5 
PPAB 1434609v3 

unreasonably withheld.  Fee simple title to the Transfer Station including additions, alterations, 

restorations, repairs or replacements thereto, except Republic’s personal property and trade 

fixtures, shall be and remain vested in the County.   

14. Hours of Operation.  Republic shall cause the Transfer Station to be open 

(i) between May 1 and September 30 from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Saturday; and 

(ii) between October 1 and April 30, from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday and 

from 8:00 a.m. to Noon Saturday.  The Transfer Station will be closed on New Years Day, 

Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day.   

15. Damage or Destruction of the Transfer Station.  In the event the Transfer Station, 

or a portion thereof is damaged by fire or other casualty so that the Transfer Station in either 

parties’ reasonable discretion cannot be used, the parties agree to use their best efforts to locate 

an alternate facility as soon as possible and to negotiate in good faith such amendments to the 

Agreement which may be necessary under the circumstances.  If the Transfer Station can be 

repaired, such repairs shall be made to restore the Transfer Station to substantially its same 

condition prior to the casualty, unless the parties agree otherwise.  All repair costs in excess of 

insurance shall be the County’s responsibility unless such fire or casualty is caused by the 

negligence of Republic.  If as a result of such casualty a new Transfer Station must be 

constructed, the amount of any insurance proceeds shall be applied to the new facility and any 

excess cost shall be paid by the County unless such fire or casualty is caused by the negligence 

of Republic.  The design and cost of any new facility shall be determined by the County.  It is the 

intention of the parties that in the event of a casualty they will cooperate, negotiate and work 

together in good faith to provide, as much as possible, uninterrupted Transfer Station service, 

making whatever amendments to this Agreement are necessary under the circumstances so that 

64



 
 6 
PPAB 1434609v3 

this Agreement may continue as contemplated by the parties for the full Term of the Authority 

Agreement. 

16. Insurance.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, Republic shall maintain, at its 

expense, comprehensive general public liability insurance which shall include coverage for 

personal liability, contractual liability, Republic’s legal liability, bodily injury (including death) 

and property damage, with respect to the business carried on at the Transfer Station in such 

amounts and against such hazards and contingencies as Republic shall reasonably desire.  All 

such insurance policies shall name the County as additional insureds and shall provide that they 

shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the County.  Throughout the 

term of this Agreement, the County shall maintain, at its expense, property insurance which fully 

insures and protects against loss resulting from damage to the Transfer Station building caused 

by fire or other casualty.  All such insurance policies shall:  (i) provide that they may not be 

cancelled without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party; and (ii) be issued by an 

insurance company authorized to do business in the State of North Carolina. 

17. Scale.  The County shall at all times maintain an accurate scale at the Transfer 

Station as well as a competent and trained scale operator.  The County, if requested, shall 

provide Republic with copies of any weigh tickets or other reports pertaining to the amount of 

waste accepted at the Transfer Station. 

18. Termination.  Either party may (but is not obligated to) terminate this Agreement 

upon:  (i) a termination of the Authority Agreement; or (ii) a breach of this Agreement by the 

other party.  Upon the termination of this Agreement, Republic shall remove all of Republic’s 

trade fixtures and surrender possession of the Transfer Station to the County.   

65



 
 7 
PPAB 1434609v3 

19. Breach; Obligation to Cure.  A breach of this Agreement shall mean a material 

failure to comply with any of the material provisions of this Agreement.  Each party shall in the 

case of any breach of its obligations under this Agreement either:  (i) cure the breach within 90 

days of receipt of written notice from the non–breaching party; or (ii) continuously demonstrate 

within such cure period that it is actively and continuously pursuing a course of action which can 

reasonably be expected to lead to a curing of the breach (the 90–day period will be extended for 

so long as the breaching party is actively and continuously pursuing such a course).   

20. Remedies.   

(a) In the event of a default under this Agreement, the non-defaulting party 

shall, upon 5 days prior written notice to the defaulting party, have the right, but not the 

obligation or duty, to cure such default, including the right to offset the costs of curing the 

default against any sums due or which become due to the defaulting party under this Agreement.  

The non–defaulting party shall use its best efforts to employ an economically reasonable method 

of curing any such default.   

(b) If an event of default occurs and is not cured in the manner allowed in this 

Agreement, then the non–defaulting party shall have the right to:  (i) take whatever action at law 

or in equity that it deems necessary or desirable to collect any amounts then due or thereafter to 

become due under this Agreement or to enforce performance of any covenant or obligation of the 

defaulting party under this Agreement; and (ii) terminate this Agreement. 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement and in recognition 

of the gravity and scope of the subject matter of this Agreement and the Authority Agreement, 

the parties agree that, notwithstanding the provisions for breach, cure and default in this 

Agreement, no party to this Agreement may elect to terminate this Agreement upon a default by 

66



 
 8 
PPAB 1434609v3 

the other party until the party seeking termination has first sent 120 days prior written notice of 

termination to the defaulting party, provided however that only 60 days notice of termination is 

required if a default is based on a failure to pay fees when due under this Agreement.  Such 

notice of termination shall be subsequent to earlier notice of breach and failure to cure (or take 

steps to cure) the subject breach.  If the event of default is cured within 90 days of such notice of 

termination, the notice of termination shall then be of no effect and this Agreement shall remain 

in full force and effect.   

(d) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Section, all rights and remedies 

under this Section are cumulative and the exercise of any one remedy does not preclude the 

exercise of one or more of any other available remedies, including any remedies not specified 

herein. 

21. Notices.  All notices required to be given by the terms of this Agreement shall be 

in writing, and deemed given when sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return 

receipt requested, at the respective addresses set forth below: 

The County: Currituck County 
P.O.  Box 39 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
ATTN:  County Manager 

 
Republic: Republic Services of North Carolina, LLC 

1220 Commerce Street SW, Suite A 
Conover, North Carolina  28613 
ATTN: Drew Isenhour 

 
 Either party may designate a different address by written notice given to the other.   

22. Warranty of Title.  The County represents and warrants to Republic that the 

County has good and marketable title to the Transfer Station and that it has the power and is 

authorized to have Republic operate the Transfer Station. 

67



 
 9 
PPAB 1434609v3 

23. Warranty of Clean Environmental Condition.  The County represents and 

warrants that the Transfer Station, including any soil, groundwater and surface water thereon, at 

the time of commencement of this Agreement is not contaminated by any chemicals, wastes, 

materials or substances regulated or controlled by any federal, state or local environmental law 

and is in compliance with all federal, state and local environmental laws.  The County hereby 

indemnifies, releases and holds Republic harmless from any and all claims, damages, costs, fees 

or actions, specifically including, but not limited to, claims under CERCLA, arising from any 

environmental contamination or violation of Environmental Law at the Transfer Station 

occurring prior to commencement of this Agreement. 

24. Invalidity.  The provisions of this Agreement are independent of and severable 

from each other, and no provision shall be affected or rendered invalid or unenforceable by 

virtue of the fact that any provision may be invalid or unenforceable in whore or in part.   

25. Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon 

and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, 

successors and assigns. 

26. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the Authority Agreement (and any 

agreements referenced in Section 1.6 of the Authority Agreement) constitute the entire 

agreement between the County and Republic for the purposes stated herein; no prior written or 

oral promises or representations prior to, contemporaneous with or subsequent to shall be 

binding. 

27. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina and Pitt County, North Carolina and the 

United States District Court for the Eastern District of North Carolina shall be the sole and 

68



 
 10 
PPAB 1434609v3 

exclusive jurisdictions for the resolution of any disputes that relate to or arise under this 

Agreement.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Republic and the County have duly executed this Agreement 

as of the day and year first above written. 

[Signatures on following page] 

69



 
 11 
PPAB 1434609v3 

       CURRITUCK COUNTY 

 
ATTEST: By:        
 Chairman of Board of Commissioners 
By:       
 
Its:       
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
By:  
      County Finance Officer 

 
 
REPUBLIC SERVICES OF NORTH CAROLINA, LLC. 
 
 

ATTEST: By:        
  Drew Isenhour 
  Area President 

 
  
 
(CORPORATE SEAL) 

70



Number 2009036

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

55818-561000 Professional Serv - Wells 56,431                       
55818-562000 Professional Serv - H2O Plant 1,425                         
55818-563000 Professional Serv - Dist Sys 11,673                       
55818-592003 H2O Plant - Outfall Diffuser 580,000                     
55818-588002 Contingency - Water Plant 450,149                   
55818-588004 Contingency - Tanks 73,290                     
55818-592002 H2O Plant - Ground Storage 63,907                     
55818-593002 Dist Sys - 14" Tie High Cotton 1,517                       
55818-593003 Dist Sys - 12' Gravel Road 1,296                       
55818-593006 Dist Sys - Tulls Creek Booster 59,370                     

649,529                     649,529                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 
2008, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Mainland Water Construction Fund (55) - No change.

Mainland Water Construction (55818) - To close our the ground water storage tank, 14" tie 
line to the High Cotton tank and the 12' gravel road to the tank, to transfer residuals from 
these projects to fund shortfalls for the outfall diffuser and to reduce budget for the Tulls 
Creek Booster Pump which came in under budget estimates.

71



Number 2009037

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-540000 Worker's Compensation 66,805                       
10530-540000 Worker's Compensation 104,138                     
10511-545000 Contract Services - Jail 10,000                     
10350-468000 Sale of Fixed Assets 10,609                     
10390-499900 Fund Balance Appropriated 150,334                   

61818-540000 Worker's Compensation 25,544                       
61360-471000 Tap & Connection Fees 25,544                     

196,487                     196,487                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 
2008, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $191,867.

Sheriff (10510); Emergency Services (10530); Jail (10511) - To increase appropriations for 
FY 2008 worker's compensation audit adjustment.

72



Number 2009038

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10640-532005 Supplies - Agriculture 1,310                         
10330-449900 Miscellaneous Grants 1,310                       

1,310                         1,310                       

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 17th day of November 
2008, passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $1,310.

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To increase appropriations to record grant award by the NC 
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services for the Currituck County Pesticide 
Container Recycling Program.

73



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
November 3, 2008 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its 
regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in 
the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members 
present:  Chairman Nelms, Commissioners Bowden, Gregory, 
Taylor and Etheridge. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
Bob Henley was present to give the invocation. 

Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Gregory moved to amend the agenda by deleting 
Items 8 and 9.  Commissioner Bowden seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
Item 2 Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-46 Twiddy Family Partnership, 
LLC:  Request to rezone .29 acres from Outer Banks Standard 
Residential (RO1) to Conditional District – General Business (CD-
GB).  The property is located at 1141 Persimmon Street, Tax Map 
114, Parcel 24, Poplar Branch Outer Banks Subtownship. 

Item 4 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-47 Twiddy Family Partnership, 
LLC:  Request to rezone .30 acres from Outer Banks Standard 
Residential (RO1) to Conditional District – General Business (CD-
GB).  The property is located at 1143 Persimmon Street, Tax Map 
114, Parcel 23, Poplar Branch Outer Banks Subtownship. 

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action  PB 07-40 Coinjock Meadows: Amended 
Sketch Plan/Special Use Permit to convert 12 single family 
dwelling units to 12 multi-family units for a total of 48 units. 
The property is located along Worth Guard Road, approximately 
4/10th of a mile from the north bank of the Coinjock Canal, Tax 
Map 70, Parcel 13, Crawford Township. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-09 Jarvis Landing:  Amended 
Sketch Plan/Special Use Permit for 39 attached residential 
dwellings. The property is located at 7400 Caratoke Highway, 
approximately 750 feet North of Case Landing Road, Tax Map 110, 
Parcel 74, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-44 Currituck County:  Request to 
amend the Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance, Chapters 
1, 4, 10, 11, 12, and 17, to establish a revised Development 
Review Process and adopt a manual by resolution. 

Item 8 Consideration and Action  on Member Waste Management Agreement 
with Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority 

74



November 3, 2008   2 

Item 9 Consideration and Action  on Agreement for operation of Transfer 
Station with Republic Services of NC, LLC 

Item 10 Consent Agenda: 
1. Jarvisburg Elementary School-Change Order #9-Blueridge General, 

Inc. 
2. Budget amendments 
3. Petition for Road Addition of Eagleton Circle to DOT System 
4. Resolution to Appoint Review Officers 
5. Approval of October 14, 2008, Special Meeting Minutes 
6. Approval of October 20, 2008, Minutes 
7. Resolution-Nonprofit Awareness Month 

Item 11 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 12 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman Nelms opened the public comment period. 

Chairman Nelms, reviewed progress on the Moyock Library, 
Water Plant and Communication Tower. 

Edith and Earl Brickhouse, Senior Tar Heel representatives, 
updated the Board on legislation presented to the General 
Assembly.  

Richard Barkalow, expressed his displeasure on the 
canceling of the Christmas parade. 

Carl Ferebee, expressed his concerns with the time it is 
taking to get his mother’s house built under the CDBG 
Program. 

Cliffie Ferebee, wanted to know when she could expect her 
house to be finished. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Nelms closed the 
public comment period. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-46 Twiddy Family 
Partnership, LLC:  Request to rezone .29 acres from Outer 
Banks Standard Residential (RO1) to Conditional District – 
General Business (CD-GB).  The property is located at 1141 
Persimmon Street, Tax Map 114, Parcel 24, Poplar Branch 
Outer Banks Subtownship. 

75



November 3, 2008   3 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-47 Twiddy Family 
Partnership, LLC:  Request to rezone .30 acres from Outer 
Banks Standard Residential (RO1) to Conditional District – 
General Business (CD-GB).  The property is located at 1143 
Persimmon Street, Tax Map 114, Parcel 23, Poplar Branch 
Outer Banks Subtownship. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed this case and 
previous case together. 

 
TYPE OF REQUEST:  To rezone .29 acres from RO1 to CD-GB. 
 
LOCATION:  Located at 1141 Persimmon Street, approximately 200 feet west 

of the intersection with Ocean Trail.   
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 114, Parcel 24 

0114-000-0024-0000 
  
OWNER: Elizabeth J. Campbell 
 99 Quail Run Drive 
 Elizabeth City NC  27909 
 
APPLICANT: Twiddy Family Partnership, LLC 
 PO Box 369 
 Corolla NC  27927 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Outer Banks Standard Residential (RO1) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Conditional District-General Business (CD-GB) 
 
ZONING CONDITIONS: Uses 

1. Generally, limited to mixed residential uses, neighborhood 
serving commercial uses, and traditional uses associated 
with a pedestrian oriented area.  However, the following 
uses shall be excluded: Family Care Homes, Mobile Homes, 
Nursing Care Facilities, Civil Defense Operations, Schools & 
Associated Uses, Cemeteries, Religious Institutions, Animal 
Services (With Outdoor Kennels), Automotive Services & 
Repair, Car Washes, Drive-Thru Uses, Dry Cleaning & 
Laundromats, Funeral Homes, Heavy Equipment Services & 
Repair, Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios, Automotive Sales 
& Rental, Drive-Thru Uses, Heavy Equipment Sales & 
Rental, Manufactured/Modular Home Sales, Restaurants 
(With Drive-Thru), Landfills, Convenience Centers, County 
Owned or Operated, Sanitary, Landfills, Airports (County 
Owned or Operated). 

Transportation 
2. Adopt a pedestrian friendly circulation, limited parking 

between commercial buildings and adjacent right(s) of way. 
Landscaping 
3. Mature trees will be identified and preserved where practical 

and commercially reasonable. 
4. Dumpsters, or similar solid waste receptacles, HVAC 

equipment, commercial mechanical units or similar fixtures 
will be screened from view where practical and commercially 

76



November 3, 2008   4 

reasonable utilizing a combination of solid landscaping or 
opaque fencing. 

5. Commercial parking areas will be screened in a 
commercially reasonable manner and shall consist of 
evergreen planting, earthen berms, solid opaque fencing or 
any combination thereof. 

Signage 
6. Freestanding signs shall be consistent with 2008 Currituck 

County Sign Ordinance and in a manner consistent with 
Outer Banks vernacular and shall not include any neon or 
internally lit signs. 

Site Design/Architectural 
7. Maximum building footprint of an individual building shall not 

exceed 4,000 square feet of gross “heated” floor area. 
8. The materials used, scale, height, building façade and colors 

of any structure shall be reflective of the historic architecture 
and vernacular of the Corolla Village. 

9. Large expanses of blank walls shall be avoided where 
commercially reasonable.  Facades shall incorporate 
architectural elements that add visual interest, including, but 
not necessarily limited to a variation in exterior materials; 
functioning windows and doorways and projecting elements 
such as front porches, eaves, cornices, canopies, bays, 
shadow lines, overhangs, porticos and colonnades. 

10. Corrugated metal building materials shall not be permitted.  
Architectural grade finished metal may be used as an accent 
materials or on elevations not visible from a right-of-way or 
area for residential uses. 

 
DENSITY: The General Business zone allows an approximate gross 

residential density of 2.5 du/acre. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential RO1 
SOUTH: Retail GB 
EAST: Retail GB 
WEST: Undeveloped RO1 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped 
 
PURPOSE LAND USE:  Mixed residential uses, neighborhood serving commercial uses, 

and traditional uses associated with a pedestrian oriented area. 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service 

within the Corolla Sub-Area.  
 

The purpose of the Full Service Area class is to provide areas 
preferred for community centers.  Areas designated as Full 
Service are those parts of the county where a broad range of 
infrastructure and service investments have been provided or will 
be made available to the public and/or private sectors.  With 
nonresidential uses, it is essential that the existing community 
character be preserved. 
 

77



November 3, 2008   5 

The policy emphasis of the Corolla Sub-Area is to allow for 
predominantly medium density residential development (2 to 3 
units per acre) with minimal commercial development arranged 
in clusters. 
 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this 
request: 
 
POLICY ES2: NON-COASTAL WETLANDS, including 
FRESHWATER SWAMPS, AND INLAND, NON-TIDAL 
WETLANDS, shall be conserved for the important role they play 
in absorbing floodwaters, filtering pollutants from stormwater 
runoff, recharging the ground water table, and providing critical 
habitat for many plant and animal species. Currituck County 
supports the efforts of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in 
protecting such wetlands through the Section 404 permit 
program of the Clean Water Act, as well as Section 401 water 
quality certifications by the State of North Carolina.   
 
Based on the soils map, this lot appears to include wetlands. An 
accurate delineation of wetlands by the Army Corps of Engineers 
will be necessary prior to development. 
 
POLICY CD5: Incompatible or poorly planned COMMERCIAL 
ENCROACHMENT within or immediately adjoining existing 
residential areas shall be prohibited. Such incompatible 
encroachments often include, but are not limited to, large-scale 
commercial uses or automobile-oriented commercial uses such 
as service stations, car lots, car washes, drive through 
restaurants, and the like.  
 
The zoning conditions submitted by the applicant limit the size of 
commercial buildings and require architectural standards for new 
construction.  Many of the automobile oriented uses typically 
associated with General Business zoning have also been 
excluded, making the request more consistent with this policy. 

 
POLICY OB5: Currituck County, through its actions and 
decisions, shall seek to preserve the historic character and 
heritage of the COROLLA VILLAGE area of the Outer Banks.   
 
The zoning conditions included as part of this request ensure 
compatibility with the surrounding area. 

 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The Corolla Fire Department provides fire protection for this 

area.  Electric, telephone, cable television, and public water are 
available.  Considering environmental conditions onsite, 
connection to a central wastewater system is preferable. 

 
FLOOD ZONE: Flood Zone AE(5). 
 
WETLANDS: It appears this lot includes significant wetlands. 
 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

non-suitable soils. 

78



November 3, 2008   6 

 
 

STAFF  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the request to establish a .29 

acre tract from Outer Banks Standard Residential (RO1) to 
Conditional District- General Business (CD-GB) for the following 
reasons: 

  
1. The proposed request is in general compliance with the Full 

Service designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and the 
Corolla Sub-Area Policy Emphasis. 

 
2. The proposed zoning conditions are consistent with the 

objectives of the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance and 2006 Land Use Plan and promote 
compatibility between the subject property and surrounding 
area (LUP Policies CD5 and OB5) 

 
3. The adjacent property to the east and properties across 

Persimmon Street are presently zoned General Business. 
 

4. Promoting mixed use, neighborhood serving commercial 
development in the Corolla Village area provides additional 
opportunities for the community in a safe, walkable setting.  
The Corolla Village area has become a major Outer Banks 
destination and by carefully expanding its commercial 
viability, the county, Corolla residents, and the local business 
community will continue to derive both economic and quality 
of life benefits. 

 
 Outstanding Staff Concerns: The conditional zoning process 

provides an opportunity for an applicant to propose use 
limitations or development conditions that ensure development 
proposals are consistent with the policies set forth in adopted 
plans.  Staff feels the following concerns could be appropriately 
addressed through the conditional zoning process. 

 
1. Staff has suggested slight modifications to the wording of the 

zoning conditions to ensure they are enforceable in the 
future.  The applicant has been made aware of these 
suggestions and staff intends to have the specifics worked 
out by the Planning Board meeting date. 

 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Kovacs asked how much parking is required. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the ordinance requires 1 space for every 200 sq. ft.  Mr. Woody stated that the 
parking ordinance may need to be rewritten to find some relief in the parking requirements for 
historic areas.  Mr. Woody stated the applicant will combine the two parcels, Tax Map 114, 
Parcels 24 and 23. Mr. Woody stated the goal of the applicant is to develop the remaining portion 
of Persimmon Street. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what type of surface the parking lot will be. 
 
Mr. Deel stated that would be addressed in the site plans. 
 
Ms. Merrell provided a sketch of the elevation of the maintenance building on Persimmon Street. 

79



November 3, 2008   7 

 
Ms. Twiddy stated they would be doing a project that would enhance the property at Corolla 
Village.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations to rezone 0.29 acres 
from Outer Banks Standard Residential (RO1) to Conditional District-General Business (CD-GB) 
according to the 2006 Land Use Plan. Mr. Winter seconded the motion. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
TYPE OF REQUEST:  To rezone .30 acres from RO1 to CD-GB. 
 
LOCATION:  Located at 1143 Persimmon Street, approximately 290 feet west 

of the intersection with Ocean Trail.   
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 114, Parcel 23 

0114-000-0023-0000 
  
OWNER: Edward and Faye Coats 
 1636 Goldfinch Lane 
 West Columbia, SC 29169 
 
APPLICANT: Twiddy Family Partnership, LLC 
 PO Box 369 
 Corolla NC  27927 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Outer Banks Standard Residential (RO1) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Conditional District-General Business (CD-GB) 
 
ZONING CONDITIONS: Uses 

1. Generally, limited to mixed residential uses, neighborhood 
serving commercial uses, and traditional uses associated 
with a pedestrian oriented area.  However, the following 
uses shall be excluded: Family Care Homes, Mobile Homes, 
Nursing Care Facilities, Civil Defense Operations, Schools & 
Associated Uses, Cemeteries, Religious Institutions, Animal 
Services (With Outdoor Kennels), Automotive Services & 
Repair, Car Washes, Drive-Thru Uses, Dry Cleaning & 
Laundromats, Funeral Homes, Heavy Equipment Services & 
Repair, Tattoo and Body Piercing Studios, Automotive Sales 
& Rental, Drive-Thru Uses, Heavy Equipment Sales & 
Rental, Manufactured/Modular Home Sales, Restaurants 
(With Drive-Thru), Landfills, Convenience Centers, County 
Owned or Operated, Sanitary, Landfills, Airports (County 
Owned or Operated). 

Transportation 
2. Adopt a pedestrian friendly circulation, limited parking 

between commercial buildings and adjacent right(s) of way. 
Landscaping 
3. Mature trees will be identified and preserved where practical 

and commercially reasonable. 
4. Dumpsters, or similar solid waste receptacles, HVAC 

equipment, commercial mechanical units or similar fixtures 
will be screened from view where practical and commercially 
reasonable utilizing a combination of solid landscaping or 
opaque fencing. 

80



November 3, 2008   8 

5. Commercial parking areas will be screened in a 
commercially reasonable manner and shall consist of 
evergreen planting, earthen berms, solid opaque fencing or 
any combination thereof. 

Signage 
6. Freestanding signs shall be consistent with 2008 Currituck 

County Sign Ordinance and in a manner consistent with 
Outer Banks vernacular and shall not include any neon or 
internally lit signs. 

Site Design/Architectural 
7. Maximum building footprint of an individual building shall not 

exceed 4,000 square feet of gross “heated” floor area. 
8. The materials used, scale, height, building façade and colors 

of any structure shall be reflective of the historic architecture 
and vernacular of the Corolla Village. 

9. Large expanses of blank walls shall be avoided where 
commercially reasonable.  Facades shall incorporate 
architectural elements that add visual interest, including, but 
not necessarily limited to a variation in exterior materials; 
functioning windows and doorways and projecting elements 
such as front porches, eaves, cornices, canopies, bays, 
shadow lines, overhangs, porticos and colonnades. 

10. Corrugated metal building materials shall not be permitted.  
Architectural grade finished metal may be used as an accent 
materials or on elevations not visible from a right-of-way or 
area for residential uses. 

 
DENSITY: The General Business zone allows an approximate gross 

residential density of 2.5 du/acre. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  

 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Wastewater drain field area RO1 
SOUTH: Retail & utility storage building GB 
EAST: Undeveloped RO1 
WEST: Undeveloped RO1 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped 
 
PURPOSE LAND USE:  Mixed residential uses, neighborhood serving commercial uses, 

and traditional uses associated with a pedestrian oriented area. 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service 

within the Corolla Sub-Area.  
 

The purpose of the Full Service Area class is to provide areas 
preferred for community centers.  Areas designated as Full 
Service are those parts of the county where a broad range of 
infrastructure and service investments have been provided or will 
be made available to the public and/or private sectors.  With 
nonresidential uses, it is essential that the existing community 
character be preserved. 
 
The policy emphasis of the Corolla Sub-Area is to allow for 
predominantly medium density residential development (2 to 3 

81



November 3, 2008   9 

units per acre) with minimal commercial development arranged 
in clusters. 
 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this 
request: 
 
POLICY ES2: NON-COASTAL WETLANDS, including 
FRESHWATER SWAMPS, AND INLAND, NON-TIDAL 
WETLANDS, shall be conserved for the important role they play 
in absorbing floodwaters, filtering pollutants from stormwater 
runoff, recharging the ground water table, and providing critical 
habitat for many plant and animal species. Currituck County 
supports the efforts of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in 
protecting such wetlands through the Section 404 permit 
program of the Clean Water Act, as well as Section 401 water 
quality certifications by the State of North Carolina.   
 
Based on the soils map, this lot appears to include wetlands.  An 
accurate delineation of wetlands by the Army Corps of Engineers 
will be necessary prior to development. 
 
POLICY CD5: Incompatible or poorly planned COMMERCIAL 
ENCROACHMENT within or immediately adjoining existing 
residential areas shall be prohibited. Such incompatible 
encroachments often include, but are not limited to, large-scale 
commercial uses or automobile-oriented commercial uses such 
as service stations, car lots, car washes, drive through 
restaurants, and the like.  
 
The zoning conditions submitted by the applicant limit the size of 
commercial buildings and require architectural standards for new 
construction.  Many of the automobile oriented uses typically 
associated with General Business zoning have also been 
excluded, making the request more consistent with this policy.  

 
POLICY OB5: Currituck County, through its actions and 
decisions, shall seek to preserve the historic character and 
heritage of the COROLLA VILLAGE area of the Outer Banks.   
 
The zoning conditions included as part of this request ensure 
compatibility with the surrounding area. 

 
 
PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The Corolla Fire Department provides fire protection for this 

area.  Electric, telephone, cable television, and public water are 
available.  Considering environmental conditions onsite, 
connection to a central wastewater system is preferable. 

 
FLOOD ZONE: Flood Zone AE(5). 
 
WETLANDS: It appears this lot includes significant wetlands. 
 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

non-suitable soils. 
 

 

82



November 3, 2008   10 

STAFF  
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the request to establish a .30 

acre tract from Outer Banks Standard Residential (RO1) to 
Conditional District- General Business (CD-GB) for the following 
reasons: 

  
1. The proposed request is in general compliance with the Full 

Service designation of the 2006 Land Use Plan and the 
Corolla Sub-Area Policy Emphasis. 

 
2. The proposed zoning conditions are consistent with the 

objectives of the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance and 2006 Land Use Plan and promote 
compatibility between the subject property and surrounding 
area (LUP Policies CD5 and OB5) 

 
3. The nearby property to the east and properties across 

Persimmon Street are presently zoned General Business. 
 
4. Promoting mixed use, neighborhood serving commercial 

development in the Corolla Village area provides additional 
opportunities for the community in a safe, walkable setting.  
The Corolla Village area has become a major Outer Banks 
destination and by carefully expanding its commercial 
viability, the county, Corolla residents, and the local business 
community will continue to derive both economic and quality 
of life benefits. 

 
 Outstanding Staff Concerns: The conditional zoning process 

provides an opportunity for an applicant to propose use 
limitations or development conditions that ensure development 
proposals are consistent with the policies set forth in adopted 
plans.  Staff feels the following concerns could be appropriately 
addressed through the conditional zoning process. 

 
Staff has suggested slight modifications to the 
wording of the zoning conditions to ensure they are 
enforceable in the future.  The applicant has been 
made aware of these suggestions and staff intends 
to have the specifics worked out by the Planning 
Board meeting date. 

 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Kovacs asked how much parking is required. 
 
Mr. Woody stated the ordinance requires 1 space for every 200 sq. ft.  Mr. Woody stated that the 
parking ordinance may need to be rewritten to find some relief in the parking requirements for 
historic areas.  Mr. Woody stated the applicant will combine the two parcels, Tax Map 114, 
Parcels 24 and 23. Mr. Woody stated the goal of the applicant is to develop the remaining portion 
of Persimmon Street. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what type of surface the parking lot will be. 
 
Mr. Deel stated that would be addressed in the site plans. 
 
Ms. Merrell provided a sketch of the elevation of the maintenance building on Persimmon Street. 

83



November 3, 2008   11 

 
Ms. Twiddy stated they would be doing a project that would enhance the property at Corolla 
Village.  
 
ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations to rezone 0.30 acres 
from Outer Banks Standard Residential (RO1) to Conditional District-General Business (CD-GB) 
according to the 2006 Land Use Plan. Mr. Kovacs seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing. 

Jeff Malarney, represented the applicant, and was present 
to answer questions. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Nelms closed the 
public hearing. 

Commissioner Bowden moved to approve both requests and 
stated that is was consistent with the Land Use Plan.  
Commissioner Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 07-40 Coinjock Meadows: 
Amended Sketch Plan/Special Use Permit to convert 12 single 
family dwelling units to 12 multi-family units for a total 
of 48 units. The property is located along Worth Guard 
Road, approximately 4/10th of a mile from the north bank of 
the Coinjock Canal, Tax Map 70, Parcel 13, Crawford 
Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making any statements. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
 
ITEM:   PB 07-40 Coinjock Meadows, Amended Sketch Plan/Special Use Permit 

for a 48 unit Planned Residential Development.  
 

LOCATION: The property is located along Worth Guard Road, approximately 4/10th of 
a mile from the north bank of the Coinjock Canal, Crawford Township. 

TAX ID: Tax Map 70, Parcel 13 (007000000130000) 
 
OWNERS/ 
APPLICANT:  Coinjock Meadows, LLC 
   PO Box 190 
   Nags Head, NC 
 
 
ENGINEER:  Quible and Associates 
   Eduardo Valdivieso 
   PO Drawer 970 
   Kitty Hawk, NC 27949 

   
CURRENT  

84



November 3, 2008   12 

ZONING: Mixed Residential (RA) and General Business (GB)  
 
EXISTING LAND 
USE:  Agricultural 
 
EXISTING LAND USE AND ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Agricultural A and GB 
SOUTH Residential RA 
EAST:  Residential and vacant wetlands RA and A 
WEST: Residential GB 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT: Central Elementary School District 
 
FIRE DISTRICT:  Crawford V.F.D. 
  
LAND AREA:  36.68 acres (excludes 2.92 acres GB)  
 
NUMBER OF UNITS: 48  

(36 single family dwelling units and 12 two family attached 
dwelling units) 

         
DENSITY:   1.31 units/ acre including wetlands 

1.38 units/acre excluding wetlands 
(3 units per acre allowed in a PRD overlay)  

 
MINIMUM LOT SIZE: 20,001 SF 
 
AVERAGE LOT SIZE:  20,973SF 
 
STREETS: The streets will be built to NCDOT construction standards with a 

reduced right of way width for private streets. 
 
WATER: The development will be served by the Currituck County Water 

System. The developer estimates 300-360 gallons per day of 
water will be used for each dwelling unit. 

 
WASTEWATER: The applicant is proposing on-site wastewater systems for each 

20,000 SF residential lot and two-family attached units. 
 
OPEN SPACE: Planned Residential Developments are required to have 35% 

Open Space. The required open space for Coinjock Meadows is 
12.84 acres (36.68AC *.35). The submitted plan proposes 36.6% 
(13.44 acres) open space.   

 
DRAINAGE: The proposed development will have one stormwater basin to 

accommodate the drainage demands. 
 
FLOOD ZONES: Approximately 14 acres of the property is located in Flood Zone AE (4). 
The remaining acres are in Flood Zones (X) or Shaded (X), outside of the 100-year flood plain. 
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• Ocean Builders. LLC is seeking approval of an amended sketch plan for a 48 unit 
Planned Residential Development (PRD), the first PRD in Currituck County. 

• The BOC approved the sketch plan/special use permit on September 17, 2007 for a 50-
lot PRD. 

85



November 3, 2008   13 

• The applicant requests a two unit reduction of the overall development.  In addition, the 
applicant is requesting to convert 12 single family lots to 12 two-family dwelling units, 
located in Phase 2 of this project. 

• A minor subdivision of two commercial parcels identified as commercial #1 and 
commercial #2 is under administrative review.  These parcels will not be part of the PRD. 

• According to the Development Impact Statement dated May 17, 2007 and amended 
August 21, 2008: 

o The development will include 36 single-family detached units and 12 multi-family 
dwelling units.  This project is being developed to provide workforce housing for 
Currituck County and surrounding counties. 

o The applicants are working with the Outer Banks Community Development 
Corporation to offer down payment assistance and special financing. 

o The sizes and costs are as follows: 
 

Model  Sq. Ft   # Bedrooms # Baths  Price Range   
Ashland 1615   3 bedroom 2 bath  $195,000 
Millbrook 1200   3 bedroom 2 bath  $165,000-$175,000 
Wedgeport 1640   3 bedroom 3 ½ bath $200,000 
Kingsport 1000 finished  2 bedroom 2 bath  $170,000- $180,000 
   688 unfinished 
Two-Family Units   2-3 bedrooms   $140,000-$175,000 

 
o The project will be developed in 2 phases with 28 single family homes in the first 

phase and 8 single family homes and 12 multi-family units in the second phase. 
o The median home price is expected to be $187,446 and the median town home 

price will be $157,500. 
 
II. SPECIAL USE PERMIT CRITERIA: 

Special Use Permits are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the Special Use Permit procedure, property uses which 
would otherwise be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to 
conditions of approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding 
properties. 
 
In order to approve a Special Use Permit, the Board of Commissioners must propose specific 
findings of fact based upon the evidence submitted.  The board must consider the following 
criteria: 
 
A. Does the proposal comply with the general standards found in Section 11.7.1  F. 12.  for 

a Special Use Permit/Sketch Plan? 
 

1. The application is complete.   
 

The application meets the submission requirements for amended sketch plan review. 
 

2. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this 
ordinance and are agreed to by the applicant. 

   
The application and proposed amended sketch plan generally complies with the 
provisions of the UDO for sketch plan approval.  The proposed conditions meet the 
minimum requirements of the UDO and are agreed to by the applicant. 

 
3. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety.  

 
Public health and safety issues including stormwater management and access for 
emergency services have been adequately addressed within this proposal. 

 

86



November 3, 2008   14 

4. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be 
in harmony with the area in which it is located.   

 
The proposed subdivision should have no negative impact on adjoining property. The 
adjoining uses are low density single family dwellings mixed with smaller lots (less 
than ½ acre) on Coinjock Development Road.  The density of the proposed 
subdivision is compatible with the adjacent residential subdivisions. 

 
5. The special use permit will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan, Thoroughfare 

Plan, or other officially adopted plan.   
 

LAND USE PLAN CLASSIFICATION:    
 The property is predominately designated Full Service within the 

Barco/Coinjock/Airport sub-area by the 2006 Land Use Plan. At the rear of the 
property, 2.69 acres is designated Conservation Class. With respect to residential 
development in Full Service Areas, base development density is contemplated to be 
2 units per acre but could be increased to 3-4 units per acre through overlay zoning 
depending upon services available and the potential impact on the surrounding area.  
A greater diversity in housing types (i.e. semi-detached, attached, and multi-family) 
would be considered appropriate in the Full Service areas. 

The policy emphasis of the 2006 Land Use Plan is for the Barco/Coinjock/Airport 
area to emerge as the principal community center serving the central area of the 
mainland and is therefore included as a Full Service Area.   
 
POLICY PA2:  The county supports MANY FORMS OF “ACCESS” to the water, 
including scenic outlooks and boardwalks, boat ramps, marinas and docks, fishing 
piers, canoe and kayak launches, and other means of access.  Whenever possible, 
such facilities shall be designed to accommodate the needs of handicapped 
individuals. 
 
POLICY ES3:  COASTAL WETLANDS shall be conserved for valuable functions they 
perform in protecting water quality and in providing critical habitat for the propagation 
and survival of important plant and animal species.  CAMA use standards and 
policies for coastal wetlands shall be supported.  Uses approved for location in 
coastal wetland must be water dependent (i.e. utility easements, bridges, docks and 
piers) and be developed so as to minimize adverse impacts.   
 
POLICY WQ5:  Development that preserves the NATURAL FEATURES OF THE 
SITE, including existing topography and significant existing vegetation, shall be 
encouraged.  COASTAL AND NON-COASTAL WETLANDS shall not be considered 
part of a lot’s acreage for the purpose of determining minimum lot size or 
development density.  Open space developments shall be encouraged to REDUCE 
IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREAS associated with new development and 
redevelopment. 
 
The proposed planned residential development conforms to the Full Service Land 
Use Plan designation. The area that is Conservation class is being set aside as open 
space. This request generally complies with the 2006 Land Use Plan.    

 
6. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public 

facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and 
other county facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for 
determining when public facilities are adequate.  Such facilities must be in place or 
programmed to be in place within two years after the initial approval of the sketch 
plan.  In the case of subdivision and multifamily development at the sketch 
plan/special use, preliminary plat, or final plat stage, the Board of Commissioners 

87



November 3, 2008   15 

may establish time limits on the number of lots/units available for development to 
assure adequate public facilities are available in accordance with Section 11.7.1.    

 
The overall proposed development density will be reduced from 50 units to 48 units, 
and there are adequate public facilities to serve this development. 
 

III. TECHNICAL STAFF COMMENTS: 
 

Planning Department (Donna Voliva) 
 
1. The sidewalks are required along both sides of the street including the multi-family 

parking area.  The parking spaces must be shifted out of the pedestrian/ sidewalk 
easement.    Staff comment:  The plan was revised and the sidewalk is located along 
both sides of the street including the front of each multi-family parking space. 

2. The septic system improvements shall be located on the individual lot it is designed to 
serve.  (Section 9.2.7.2.H)  Staff comment:  The plan was revised and the septic area for 
lots 29, 35, and 36 has been removed from the residual acreage.   The septic area 
intended for the two-family detached units will be located adjacent to the VEPCO 
Easement which must be part of the tract of land where the buildings are located.  The 
preliminary plat submittal for Phase 2 must identify the two-family dwelling units and the 
septic area as one parcel excluded from the open space.   

3. The septic area must be excluded from open space (Section  10.4.1. C.4.)  Staff 
comment:  The preliminary plat submittal for Phase 2, including the two-family dwelling 
units, must identify the septic area as a part of a separate tract and excluded from the 
open space.   

4. The calculations for the reserve utility open space must be provided.  Also include the 
multi-family improvements.  Staff comment:  The calculations have been received. 

5. The north arrow must be indicated on the amended sketch plan.  Staff comment:  The 
north arrow was added to the revised plan. 

NC Division of Coastal Management  (Charlan Owens) 

A 74-foot walkway to access the water with a 120 square foot deck along the water’s edge 
was approved under CAMA Minor Permit M08-20 issued by the County’s Local Permit Officer 
on June 20, 2008. 

Currituck Fire Services (James Mims) 

Will the multi-family dwellings require sprinklers as specified in the NC Building Code?  If so, I 
need to see the fire department connections on the site plan.  They should be positioned in a 
manner that a connection from a fire hydrant to the fire apparatus to the fire department 
connection will not block the full width of the fire apparatus access.  Staff comment: The 
revised plan indicates two-family attached units.  Two-family attached units will not require 
fire sprinklers.  . 

Currituck Public Works, Utilities (Pat Irwin) 

Approved with the following conditions and comments:  Run the waterline around the cul-de-
sacs.   Staff comment:  The waterline plans for phase 1 were approved and have been 
installed.  The requested changes will be made to phase 2 construction plans. 

 

Currituck Public Works, Engineering (Eric Weatherly) 

Approved. 

Currituck Soil and Water (Mike Doxey) 

Approved. 

88



November 3, 2008   16 

Currituck Building Inspections  (Spence Castello) 

Handicap parking and accessible route is required for the pavilion.  Staff comment: A 
concrete parking and sidewalk will be installed. 

NCDOT  (Roger Ward) 

The driveway permit was issued on 5/02/08. 

Parks and Recreation (Jason Weeks) 

Parks and Recreation suggests making the mulch trail an ADA accessible trail by using an 
approved surfacing such as concrete or pavement.  Staff Comment:  The approved mulch 
trail was installed as part of phase 1 improvements.   

Dominion Power (Donald Hoover) 

Consent for right-of-way encroachment is approved for grading, Dominion access road, 
stormwater basin, active and non-active drain fields, utility open space (potential drain field 
repair areas), drainage, culverts and road crossing. 

US Army Corps of Engineers (Tom Steffens) 

Approved wetland delineation map. 

Albemarle Regional Health Services  

No comment received. 

 

V. SPECIAL USE PERMIT CONDITIONS FROM SEPTEMBER 17, 2007: 

1. All lots for the development shall have a minimum size of 20,000 square feet with 
individual on-site septic systems. 

2. The applicant shall submit an amended sketch plan that shows all lots meet the minimum 
size of 20,000 square feet.  The plan dated 7-27-07 does not indicate 20,000 square foot 
lots. 

3. The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the conditions 
approved by the Board of Commissioners and the Amended Sketch Plan on file with the 
Planning Department. 

4. If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof shall be held invalid or void, then 
this permit shall be void and of no effect. 

5. This permit is valid for two years and will expire on September 17, 2009 if work has not 
begun on the project at that time.  Once work has begun and the use begins, this special 
use permit shall remain valid so long as the conditions under which it was granted are 
met. 

6. Provide an adequate stormwater analysis of onsite and offsite (downstream) drainage 
during planning stages.  Follow requirements of UDO Section 922, which indicates the 
post development stormwater run off shall not exceed the pre-development runoff prior to 
preliminary plat submission. 

7. Indicate the breakdown of the open space used for active recreation and visual relief.  
This should show that the active recreation meets or exceeds 50% of the open space 
(Section 936) 

8. The applicant has not provided a reserve utility open space as required by Section 703.  
The county engineer shall approve the area required for a reserve utility open space 
before the Sketch Plan receives approval. 

9. Additional recreational areas shall be indicated to meet the requirement of 50% of the 
open space designated for recreation.  The plan dated 7-23-07 does not indicate a multi-
purpose open play field shall be graded and installed with soccer goals.  This play field 

89



November 3, 2008   17 

shall be placed in a portion of the area indicated for a community garden.  (Section 936-
937) 

10. An improved driveway and parking area shall be provided to access the waterfront park 
and garden.  The current plan does not appear to provide access to the park.  (Section 
701) 

11. Section 914 of the UDO (as of 8-20-2007) requires all subdivisions over 20 lots to install 
concrete sidewalks along both sides of all proposed streets in accordance with NCDOT 
regulations. 

12. The required improvements shall be installed and accepted prior to submission for Final 
Plat approval for each phase. 

13. The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the plans 
submitted to and approved by the Board of Commissioners. 

14. No land disturbing activities shall be permitted on site prior to issuance of the Preliminary 
Plat approval, including clearing vegetation, grading, filling the property, or installing 
bulkheads.  (Section 910) 

15. A wetlands plat approved by the Corps of Engineers is required at preliminary plat 
submission. 

16. Correct the date of the previously recorded survey of the parcel in the note 9. 

17. The materials submitted to date provide only four house styles.  The applicant should 
submit a home and building design template that shall be incorporated with the approval.  
The template should be provided prior to preliminary plat approval and incorporate 
architectural elements for the residential structures.  At a minimum the applicant shall 
consider the following with respect to the residential structures: 

a. Variation in exterior architectural materials (siding, roofing); 

b. Vertical and horizontal relief in buildings (roof lines, eaves, bump outs); 

c. Variation in house styles/types; and, 

d. Inclusion of front porches, projecting bays, vestibules. 

18. A landscape plan shall be submitted in conjunction with the preliminary plat showing the 
location, spacing, caliper dimension, and species of proposed landscaping materials.  
Shrubs shall be at least ten gallons in size and trees must be at least two inches in 
caliper at planting.   

19. A complete loop trail system shall be installed prior to the recordation of the first phase in 
order to ensure active recreation amenities are completed in tandem with the residential 
construction.  Additions to the trail and sidewalk system should be installed prior to the 
recordation of additional phases. 

20. All of the open space areas surrounding the ponds shall be stabilized with grass, 
vegetation, and the proposed landscaping prior to recordation of the first phase. 

21. All visual relief open space within each phase shall be stabilized and vegetated with 
grass. 

22. Given the relatively small size of the proposed lots, an R/V and boat parking area shall be 
shown to the rear of the development. 

 
VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
The proposed development meets the requirements for amended sketch plan/special use permit 
approval and the planning staff recommends approval subject to the findings of fact and the 
following code and TRC requirements: 
 

90



November 3, 2008   18 

1. The applicant shall complete the development in accordance with the conditions 
approved by the Board of Commissioners and the amended sketch plan on file with the 
Planning Department. 

2. If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof are invalid or void, then this 
permit shall be void and of no effect. 

3. All required improvements, including a multi-purpose open play field with soccer goals, 
shall be graded, installed and accepted prior to submission for final plat approval or each 
phase. 

4. An improved driveway and parking area shall be provided to access the waterfront park 
and garden. 

5. Sidewalks shall be installed along both sides of the street including the two-family 
detached parking area. 

6. The septic area may not be included in open space (Section 10.4.1. C.4) 
7. Parking spaces may not be located within 15 feet of a fire hydrant (Section 8.1  F.) 
8. All required septic system improvements shall be located on the individual lot they are 

designed to serve.   (Section 9.2.7.2. H) 
9. All lots on individual on-site septic systems shall be a minimum of 20,000 square feet. 
10. An improved driveway and parking area shall be provided to access the waterfront park 

and garden. 
11. Concrete sidewalks shall be provided along both sides of all proposed streets.  Sidewalks 

shall be installed in accordance with NCDOT regulations. 
12. The applicant proposes four single family residential housing styles.  At a minimum the 

applicant shall consider the following with respect to the residential structures: 
a. Variation in exterior architectural materials (siding, roofing); 
b. Vertical and horizontal relief in buildings (roof lines, eaves, bump outs); 
c. Variation in house styles/types; and, 
d. Inclusion of front porches, projecting bays, vestibules. 

13. A landscape plan shall be submitted in conjunction with the preliminary plat showing the 
location, spacing, caliper dimensions, and species of proposed landscaping materials.  
Shrubs shall be at least ten gallons in size and trees must be at least two inches in 
caliper at planting.   

14. A complete loop trail system shall be installed prior to the recordation of the first phase in 
order to ensure active recreation amenities are completed in concurrence with the 
residential construction.  Additions to the trail and sidewalk system shall be installed prior 
to the recordation of additional phases. 

15. All open space areas, including areas surrounding the pond, shall be stabilized with 
grass, vegetation, and proposed landscaping prior to recordation of the first phase. 

16. Given the relatively small size of the proposed lots, an R/V and boat parking area shall be 
shown to the rear of the development. 

17. The septic system improvements shall be located on the individual lot it is designed to 
serve.  (Section 9.2.7.2.H) 

   
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Kovacs asked what type of septic system will be installed. 
 
Mr. Deel stated it will be a conventional system that will serve more than one unit. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked Mr. Deel if he is okay with the staff recommendations. 
 
Mr. Deel stated yes. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how many parking spaces will be available. 
 
Mr. Webb stated each building will have 12 spaces plus 4 extra spaces to a total of 16 parking 
spaces per building. 
 
ACTION 

91



November 3, 2008   19 

Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations of the Amended 
Sketch Plan/Special Use Permit to convert 12 single family dwelling units to 12 multi-family units. 
Ms. Turner seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing. 

Melissa Henry Shell, stated that her questions had been 
answered. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Nelms closed the 
public hearing. 

Chairman Nelms moved to approve. Commissioner Bowden 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-09 Jarvis Landing:  
Amended Sketch Plan/Special Use Permit for 39 attached 
residential dwellings. The property is located at 7400 
Caratoke Highway, approximately 750 feet North of Case 
Landing Road, Tax Map 110, Parcel 74, Poplar Branch 
Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making statements. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request 
 
ITEM:  PB 08-09 Jarvis Landing Multi-Family, Amended Special Use Permit for 39 attached 
residential dwellings. 
 
LOCATION:  Located at 7400 Caratoke Highway, approximately 750 feet 

North of Case Landing Rd.   
 
TAX ID:   Tax Map 110, Parcel 74 

0110-000-0074-0000 
  
OWNER:      GOB, LLC 

PO Box 125 
Point Harbor, NC  27964 

 
ENGINEER:   Bissell Professional Group 
    Mark Bissell 
    PO Box 1068 
    Kitty Hawk, NC 27949 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Conditional District-General Business (CD-GB) 
 
 
ZONING HISTORY:  

1. The property was zoned Residential (R) on the 1989 zoning 
atlas.  

2. A Sketch Plan/ Special Use Permit for a 14 lot residential 
subdivision was granted for this property on April 3, 2006.   

3. The subdivision was constructed and Final Plat approval 
was granted on May 8, 2007.  

92



November 3, 2008   20 

4. The Final Plat was not recorded within 90 days of the 
approval and has now expired. 

5. A Conditional Zoning- General Business district was 
approved for the property on March 3, 2008. 

6. A Special Use Permit for a 39 unit multi-family development 
was approved March 3, 2008 

NARRATIVE:  
GOB, LLC is applying to amend their special use permit from a duplex, condo complex to an 
apartment development under single ownership. The design of the housing is also changing. The 
apartments will be in a duplex design with parking to the rear of the buildings. The amenities will 
include a clubhouse, mulched trail through the wooded area and a 9,000 square foot 
neighborhood park area. 
 
LAND AREA:   15.40 acres 
 
NUMBER OF UNITS:  39 
 
DENSITY: 39 units allowed by the conditions of the zoning approval. 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
  
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential and Sand Mine R and GB 
SOUTH: Residential and Undeveloped R 
EAST: Undeveloped GB 
WEST: Undeveloped R 
 
EXISTING LAND USE:  Vacant Residential Subdivision. 
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: 39 duplex apartments, and related amenities. 

 
PUBLIC SERVICES   
AND UTILITIES:   The Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department provides fire 

protection for this area.  Electric service, telephone and public 
water are available.  

 
TRANSPORTATION:  The site has approximately 24 linear feet of frontage on Caratoke 

Highway. 
 
FLOOD ZONE: This site has been designated an X Flood Zone by FEMA and is 

therefore out of the 100 year floodplain. 
 
SOILS: The Currituck County Soils map indicates the property contains 

suitable soils for on-site septic systems.  
 
OPEN SPACE: The development is required to have 30% open space (4.62 

acres). The plan proposes 58% open space (8.97 acres). 
 
WATER: The development will be served by county water. 
 
WASTEWATER: Conventional bed systems are being proposed. 
 
DRAINAGE: The drainage will be directed to roadside ditches that will lead to 

two stormwater infiltration basins. 
 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT CRITERIA: 

93



November 3, 2008   21 

Special use permits are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. In order to approve a special use permit, certain criteria must be 
satisfied.  The criteria are outlined as follows: 
 
1. The application is complete.  

Based on staff review all required information has been submitted. 
 

2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a special use 
indicated with an “S”. 

A multi-family apartment complex is a permitted use in a General Business zoning 
district. 
 

3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance and 
are agreed to by the applicant. 

The plan meets the requirements of the UDO and previously approved conditions. 
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
Public health and safety issues including stormwater management, wastewater disposal 
and access for emergency services have been adequately addressed for this 
development. 
 

5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is located.  

The proposed 39 unit residential development should have no negative impact on 
adjoining property.  The adjoining uses include residential and multi-family uses. The 
proposed development is consistent with the objectives of the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance and promotes compatibility between the subject property and 
surrounding area. 
 

6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan, Thoroughfare Plan, or other 
officially adopted plan. 

The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Limited Service Area within the 
Jarvisburg Sub-Area.  

 
The purpose of the Limited Services Area class is to provide for primarily 
residential development at low densities.  Despite the overall low density of these 
areas, efforts should be made to encourage clusters of residential uses to 
preserve open space and to provide for a sense of a "community".  Base 
development density should be 1 unit per acre but could be increased to 1.5 units 
per acre through overlay zoning depending upon whether service facilities are in 
place or planned and the potential impact on the surrounding community.  

 
The policy emphasis of the 2006 plan is to allow the Jarvisburg area to 
accommodate quality residential development at low densities while preserving 
the rural landscape between such developments. 

 
The following Land Use Plan policies are also relevant to this request: 

 
POLICY AG6: For areas experiencing intense development pressure, new 
residential development may be allowed to locate in COMPACT, VILLAGE-LIKE 
CLUSTERS, PREFERABLY NEAR EXISTING, NON-AGRICULTURAL 
ACTIVITIES AND SERVICES, or in other locations that will not interfere with 
resource production activities. 

 
POLICY HN3: Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of 
residential development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban 
sprawl: 

94



November 3, 2008   22 

 
1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, 

preserving permanently dedicated open space and often employ on-site or 
community sewage treatment. These types of developments are likely to 
occur primarily in the Conservation, Rural, and to a certain extent the Limited 
Service areas identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR A 
MIXTURE OF USES that promote a return to balanced, self-supporting 
community centers generally served by centralized water and sewer. The 
types of development are contemplated for the Full Service Areas identified 
on the Future Land Use Map. 

 
The proposed special use permit is in general compliance with the policy 
emphasis of the Jarvisburg Sub-Area and policies AG6, and HN3 of the 2006 
Land Use Plan. 

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, 

including, but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county 
facilities.  Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when 
public facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be in place 
within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of major 
subdivisions). 

1. The county water department has adequate water to serve the proposed 39 dwelling 
residential development. 

2. School seats for 39 residential dwellings were previously allocated on March 3, 2008. 
3. Staff has determined adequate public facilities exist to serve this subdivision. 

 
Technical Review Meeting was held on September 17, 2008 and the reviewing agencies had 
the following comments: 
 

1. NCDOT: Approved with following comments: A driveway permit was issued 7/14/06, 
additional development may require improvements to US 158. 

 
2. CURRITUCK COUNTY SOIL AND WATER: Approved with no comment. 

 
3. COUNTY ENGINEER: Approved with the following comment:  

a. All of the units need individual water meters unless a single meter is 
installed for the entire project.  

b. Tap fees will be required for all units, but credits will be applied for the 14 
tap fees previous paid. 

c. The other option is to have one 6” meter for the entire development since 
it will now be single ownership. 

d. Please contact the Water Department to determine the costs for each 
option. 

 
4. CURRITUCK COUNTY WATER DEPARTMENT: Approved with the following 

comments:  
a. The waterlines are installed along the existing streets.  
b. If additional lines or hydrants are needed, plans will need to be submitted 

for review. 
 
5. CURRITUCK COUNTY FIRE SERVICES: Approved with the following comments: 

1. Any islands located in the middle of cul de sacs should be designed without any 
large shrubs, trees, signs, gazebos, or utility equipment that would hamper 
ladder trucks from driving over them. 

2. Will the multifamily dwellings require sprinklers as specified by the North Carolina 
Building Code?  If so, I need to see the fire department connections on the site 

95



November 3, 2008   23 

plan.  They should be positioned in a manner that a connection from a fire 
hydrant to the fire apparatus then to the fire department connection will not block 
the full with of the fire apparatus access.   

 
6. N.C. DIVISION OF COASTAL MANAGEMENT:  

 The plan was reviewed with no comment. 
 

7. ALBEMARLE REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICES: Approved with the following 
comments:  

a. Topography is not flat; therefore septic systems may take up larger area 
than normal- lines may have to run diagonal on lot in order to fit system 
in.  

b. Need to show the initial and repair areas with each unit along with 
contours.  The woodland areas appear to limit available space. 

c. There needs to be a septic easement for lines under the streets. 
d. These systems will require an engineered approval. 
 

8. CURRITUCK INSPECTIONS DIVISION: Approved with the following comment: 
Where is the accessibility parking? 

 
9. CURRITUCK COUNTY RECREATION: The plan was reviewed with no comment. 

 
10. CURRITUCK COUNTY GIS/ TAX MAPPING: Approved with the following 

comment: Street names are OK, but GIS would like the cul-de-sacs to have 
separate names for 911 purposes. Please propose at least 2 names. Addresses will 
be assigned to buildings after GIS street names are finalized. 

 
11. NC Office of State Archeology: Approved as is. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Because it appears the application has satisfied the criteria for granting a Special Use Permit 
approval as outlined above, staff recommends conditional approval of the application subject to 
satisfaction of the TRC comments, and subject to the following new conditions and the conditions 
required by the Board of Commissioners in their 3-3-08 approval of the Special Use Permit and 
the Conditional Zoning-General Business district: 
 
CODE and SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS: 

 
1. An open space preservation easement needs to be recorded when the following list of 

easements are recorded (as required in the SUP 3-3-08): 
A recorded deed of easements along with a map of the easements shall be recorded in the 
Currituck County Registry of Deeds for the following (Section 9.2.1 Utility Easements): 

a. A utility easement shall be dedicated to the Currituck County Water Department 
for all areas that contain county water lines. 

b. A utility easement area shall be established for all drainage infrastructures, 
power, telephone, and cable lines.  

c. The width of the drainage and utility easement shall be 60 feet wide along the 
streets with a 60 foot radius at the cul-de-sacs. This will comply with the 
requirements for lots of 45 feet wide street right of way plus 15 feet along the 
frontage of lots. (Section 9.2.1 Utility Easements) 

 
2. Individual site plan submissions will be required for each building when the architectural 

drawings are submitted. 
 
3. The concrete sidewalks shall be installed with each building as they are constructed so 

that a pedestrian travel way is created between the residential unit and the amenities 
area. 

96



November 3, 2008   24 

 
4. All of the conditions approved 3-3-08 for the Special Use Permit and Conditional District-

General Business district (CD-GB) apply to this amended project. 
 
 
PREVIOUS CONDITIONAL ZONING REQUIREMENTS 

1. Uses: 39 townhome style dwellings, manager’s office/community center, and related 
amenities. 

2. Density shall not exceed 2.574 dwelling units per acre. 
3. 25 feet of undisturbed natural vegetative buffer shall remain along the northern and 

western property lines. 
4. A walking path/sidewalk shall be constructed for pedestrian connectivity to the existing GB 

zoning district to the east. 
5. Existing woodlands shall be preserved to the extent practicable. 
6. An opaque privacy fence will be constructed along the northern property line adjacent to 

tax map parcel 110-75B and along the western property line adjacent to tax map parcel 
110-75D. 

7. A minimum of 30% of the acreage of existing woodland, excluding utility areas, shall be 
designated and maintained as an undisturbed tree preservation area. 

 
 
PREVIOUS SUP REQUIREMENTS  
 
1. This development shall be subject to final plan approval by the Technical Review Committee. 
 
2. The applicant shall submit detailed drawings that comply with the standards for a commercial 

site plan for Technical Review Committee Review. (11.14.4) 
 
3. A recorded deed of easements along with a map of the easements shall be recorded in the 

Currituck County Registry of Deeds for the following (Section 9.2.1 Utility Easements): 
a. A utility easement shall be dedicated to the Currituck County Water Department 

for all areas that contain county water lines. 
b. A utility easement area shall be established for all drainage infrastructures, 

power, telephone and cable lines.  
c. The width of the drainage and utility easement shall be 60 feet wide along the 

streets with a 60 foot radius at the cul-de-sacs. This will comply with the 
requirements for lots of 45 feet wide street right of way plus 15 feet along the 
frontage of lots. (Section 9.2.1 Utility Easements) 

 
4. The final site plan shall indicate who will be responsible for the stormwater system 

maintenance. 
 
5. The applicant shall indicate prior to Board of Commissioners approval where a power line, 

telephone easement will be placed and where the connections will occur off-site. If the utilities 
are connecting to the lines on US 158, additional easements from the Jarvis property may 
have to be acquired. 

 
6. Before a final plan approval is issued, the applicant shall have the following permits 

approved: a NC Stormwater Management permit, a NC Sedimentation and Erosion Control 
permit, and an Environmental Health or Division of Water Quality wastewater permit.  

7. The construction of streets, parking and infrastructure may begin after a final plan approval is 
issued by the Technical Review Committee. This approval may be issued in phases. 

8. No part of the open space shall be encumbered by an active or repair septic area, roadways, 
drainage systems or utility lines. (Chapter 17, Definition of Open Space) The final plan 
submission shall deduct these areas from the open space calculation. 

97



November 3, 2008   25 

9. If a tree designated for preservation is removed or dies after a certificate of occupancy is 
issued, the permit recipient or successor shall be responsible for replacement. (Section 5.7 
Bufferyard Maintenance) 

10. Payment of water tap fees will be required prior to the building permits being issued for each 
unit.  

11. The loop walking trail shall be installed prior to the first building receiving a certificate of 
compliance. 

12. The following shall be submitted with the landscaping plan: 

A. Approximate location and description of the protective tree fencing, staking, or continuous 
ribbon to be installed which, at a minimum, follows the drip line of all trees to be retained 
along adjoining areas of clearing, grading, or other construction activity. 

B. Location, spacing, and caliper dimension, and species of new trees to be provided. 

C. A summary table of the number of new trees to be planted and existing trees to be 
retained along with calculations showing the buffer and shading requirements have been 
satisfied.  Grouping of trees in tree preservation areas may be keyed to the summary 
table by area rather than having each individual tree labeled on the plan. 

D. A note on the plan indicating that a one-year full-price replacement guarantee on all new 
trees planted is held by the applicant and an additional one-year guarantee on 
replacement plant.  The applicant is expected to maintain plantings, including watering all 
plants when natural rainfall is less than one inch per week.   

E. A note on the plan indicating that the applicant shall remove all stakes and guy wires 
form trees and site one year after planting. 

13. The architectural standards are: 

A. Vertical and horizontal relief in buildings, including but not limited to façade articulation 
and other architectural elements that add visual interest; 

B. Inclusion of front porches, projecting bays, vestibules; 

C. Attached dwelling units containing more than (5) units in a row shall have facades, which 
alternate siding styles and patterns to provide visual distinction to each unit. Alternation 
between siding and brick is encouraged; 

D. An architectural elevation for each unit shall be approved by the Planning Department 
prior to each building permit being issued. 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing. 

David Ryan, Bissell Engineering, was present to answer 
questions. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Nelms closed the 
public hearing. 

Commissioner Gregory moved to approve.  Commissioner Bowden 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 08-44 Currituck County:  
Request to amend the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance, Chapters 1, 4, 10, 11, 12, and 17, to establish 
a revised Development Review Process and adopt a manual by 
resolution. 

98



November 3, 2008   26 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
As directed by the Board of Commissioners at their January 2008 retreat, planning staff has 
recently completed a process to consolidate and modernize the development review process.  
This nearly year long effort has resulted in an improved review process that promotes efficiency 
and continues to allow reasonable oversight by county staff and public officials. 
 
The need for changes to the development review process is a result of conflicting procedures and 
requirements that often cause frustration among regular users.  Additionally, administration of the 
current process is cumbersome for county staff.  The inefficiencies of the current process create a 
lengthy and complex process that is confusing for the general public.  It is also the opinion of the 
county attorney that the vesting of subdivisions does not properly occur under the current 
process. 
 
Extensive public input was sought to best identify the specific problems that existed with the 
review process and then determine the most appropriate solutions.  Following the January Board 
of Commissioners retreat the following steps were taking: 

• To identify deficiencies, the review process was benchmarked or compared to 
other local governments. 

• A survey was mailed to 36 governmental agencies or representatives and 38 
developers/engineers/surveyors 

• A public meeting/luncheon was held and the survey results were reviewed.  
Additional comments were accepted during the meeting. 

• On July 17 a draft document was released based the survey results and public 
comments. 

• Additional comments were accepted on the draft through the end of July. 
• A Planning Board work session was held on September 8. 
• A Board of Commissioners work session was held on September 15. 

 
As a result of the input gathered from governmental agencies, Planning Board members, the 
development community and citizens, the following changes are being recommended: 

• Revise and update submittal requirements and deadlines to promote efficiency 
and lessen confusion. 

• Utilize electronic submission of plans and rely on newer technology that is now 
available. 

• Centralize adjoining property notices and Technical Review Committee mailings 
which allows for timelier public notice (currently the applicant is responsible for 
notification). 

• Establish clear deadlines and lines of communication between county staff and 
users of the process. 

• Reduce the total number of public hearings from four to two: 
o Speeds up and shortens the development review process. 
o Provides less confusion to the general public (i.e., why does the same 

subdivision keep coming back for public hearings). 
o Promotes efficiency and allows more staff time and resources to be 

dedicated to other planning efforts. 
o Approval of preliminary plat/SUP by the Board of Commissioners to 

ensure legal vesting is consistent with State law. 
• Establish a Development Review Manual: 

o Includes information on review processes, submittal procedures and 
design requirements. 

o Detailed information related to processes is included in the Development 
Review Manual rather than the Unified Development Ordinance 
(everything is found in one location rather than spread throughout the 
UDO). 

99



November 3, 2008   27 

o Allows for increased flexibility in establishing policies to ensure the 
review process remains fluid and reflective of changing economic and 
environmental conditions. 

 
In summary, the changes proposed to the development review process should provide a 
framework that allows reasonable oversight by county officials while ensuring development 
projects are consistent with the Unified Development Ordinance and adopted plans.  The revised 
process not only provides an opportunity to protect the public health, safety, and welfare; but also 
allows the county to more efficiently coordinate development impacts with the provision of public 
services. 
 
The Planning Board considered this request at their October 14 meeting and unanimously 
recommended approval.  Attached please find the Planning Board meeting minutes, a resolution 
of adoption, and the Development Review Manual. The associated text amendments proposed to 
the Unified Development Ordinance can be found on the Planning Department’s website under 
latest news: www.co.currituck.nc.us/planning.cfm.  
 
Should you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me at your convenience. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. Woody stated that the fee schedule will probably need to be revised because staff will be 
taking on more work and lessen the developers cost. The fee schedule has not been increased 
since 1994.  
 
Mr. Midgette asked if we were compatible to other counties. 
 
Mr. Woody stated Currituck’s fees are lower than other counties.  
 
The Planning Board discussed the fee schedule increase and the timing of submissions on the 
planning board agenda. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval to amend the Currituck County Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapters 1, 4, 10, 11, 12, and 17 and to revise the fee schedule and 
establish timing of submissions.  Ms. Turner seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
 

CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION FOR 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS MANUAL 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners has determined a need for 
the adoption of a Development Review Process Manual to consolidate the development review 
processes and promote efficiency; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that development review processes should be 
incorporated into a single document as an aid for citizens, public officials, engineers and other 
users of the process; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the establishment of a development review process manual provides a 
framework that allows reasonable oversight by county staff and officials while ensuring 
development projects are consistent with the Unified Development Ordinance and adopted plans; 
and 
 

100



November 3, 2008   28 

WHEREAS, the establishment of a development review process manual provides an 
opportunity to not only protect the public health, safety, and welfare; but also allows the county to 
better coordinate development impacts with the provision of services; and 
 

WHEREAS, attached hereto is that certain “Development Review Process Manual,” 
which contains review procedures for development in Currituck County; and, 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
CURRITUCK COUNTY, adopt by resolution and incorporate within the Unified Development 
Ordinance by reference, the “Development Review Process Manual”, a correct copy of which is 
attached hereto.  
  
ADOPTED the 3rd day of November, 2008. 
EFFECTIVE the 22nd day of January, 2009. 

Chairman Nelms opened the public hearing. 

Commissioner Etheridge requested that a public hearing be 
held at the sketch plan. 

Commissioner Bowden moved to adopt the manual Resolution.  
Commissioner Gregory seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Chairman Nelms moved to approve the text amendments.  
Commissioner Bowden seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Etheridge voting no. 

Board commended the staff for their work on this plan. 

Consideration and Action on Member Waste Management 
Agreement with Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management 
Authority 

Deleted 

Consideration and Action on Agreement for operation of 
Transfer Station with Republic Services of NC, LLC 

Deleted 

Consent Agenda: 
1. Jarvisburg Elementary School-Change Order #9-

Blueridge General, Inc. 
2. Budget amendments 
3. Petition for Road Addition of Eagleton Circle 

to DOT System 
4. Resolution to Appoint Review Officers 
5. Approval of October 14, 2008, Special Meeting 

Minutes 
6. Approval of October 20, 2008, Minutes 
7. Resolution-Nonprofit Awareness Month 

101



November 3, 2008   29 

Commissioner Taylor moved to approve.  Commissioner 
Etheridge seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10440-561000  Professional Services  11,631   

10390-499900  
Fund Balance 
Appropriated  34,890   

10320-411000  
Article 39 Sales & Use 
Tax    46,521 

       
    $46,521   $46,521  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

 

Finance (10440) - To increase Finance professional services for ongoing Tax 
Reduction Specialists services for Sales and Use Tax Reallocation.  They have 
worked with the NC Department of Revenue to properly reallocate sales tax from 
vendors within the County.  This has resulted in an additional $46,521.79 of sales 
tax being returned to the County. 

       
Net Budget 
Effect: 
 
 

Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $34,890. 
 
 
 

    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
27608-545000  Contract Services  7,000   

27390-499900  
Fund Balance 
Appropriated    7,000 

       
    $7,000   $7,000  
       
Explanation: 
 

Moyock Watershed Service District (27690) - To increase budgeted funds for 
maintenance in service district. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Moyock Watershed Service District (27) - Increased by $7,000. 

 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

102



November 3, 2008   30 

10445-526000  Advertising  510   
10445-532000  Supplies    510 
       
    $510   $510  
       
Explanation: 
 

Human Resources (10455) - To transfer budgeted funds to advertise to Payroll 
Clerk position vacancy. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10550-592000  Airport Projects  10,360   
10380-481000  Investment Earnings    10,360 
       
    $10,360   $10,360  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Airport (10550) - To increase budgeted line items for Community Partner 
Participation Fees for inclusion in the USDOT 2007 Small Community Air Service 
Development Program. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $10,360. 

103



November 3, 2008   31 

 
 

104



November 3, 2008   32 

 
 

105



November 3, 2008   33 

 
 

106



November 3, 2008   34 

 

107



November 3, 2008   35 

108



November 3, 2008   36 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, GS 47-30.2 requires the Board of Commissioners in each county, by 
resolution, to appoint one or more persons as review officers to review plats before they 
are recorded; and 
 

109



November 3, 2008   37 

WHEREAS, appointed review officers shall certify that the plat meets the statutory 
requirements for recording; and 
 
WHEREAS, the persons appointed as review officers should be experienced in mapping 
or land records management. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the following individuals serving in the 
positions indicated are hereby designated as review officers as required by GS 47-30.1. 
 
     
    Tracy Sample, Tax Administrator 
    Donna Voliva, Planner 
    Lucy Cardwell, GIS Specialist - Land Records 
    Tammy Glave, Planner 
    David Webb, Senior Planner 
    Holly White, Senior Planner 
    Ben Woody, Planning Director 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
individuals listed above, the Director of Planning, Senior Planner, Planner and the 
Currituck County Register of Deeds. 
 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION OF 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Currituck-Dare Community Foundation is an affiliate of the North 
Carolina Community Foundation; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Currituck-Dare Community Foundation was established to serve the 
needs of local non-profit organizations, donors and charitable causes; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Currituck-Dare Community Foundation is part of more than 650 
community foundations that help transform our neighborhoods through the power of 
philanthropy; and  
 

WHEREAS, the members of the Currituck-Dare Community Foundation are 
committed to supporting and respecting the uniqueness of each non-profit agency; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Currituck-Dare Community Foundation is committed to increasing 
public awareness of the valuable and diverse services provided to the community.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF CURRITUCK COUNTY, declares the month of November 2008 
as “NONPROFIT AWARENESS MONTH” and extends its sincere congratulations to the 
charitable nonprofits serving our community for their dedicated and unselfish service to the 

110



November 3, 2008   38 

community and sincere gratitude to the residents of Currituck County whose volunteer spirits 
and donations make these organizations strong.  

Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Taylor reminded people to vote tomorrow. 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 
 
 

111



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Barry C Nelms Chairman

Gene A Gregory ViceChairman

Emie Bowden

J Owen Etheridge
Janet L Taylor

UUNTY OF CURRITUCK
County Managers Office

Post Office Box 39

Currituck North Carolina 279290039

Telephone 252 2322075 Fax252 2323551
State Courier 106917

October 29 2008

Dean Johnny Wynne Dean College of Agriculture and Life Sciences
Dr Jon F Ort Assistant Vice Chancellor Associate Dean and Director
North Carolina State University
Campus Box 7602

Raleigh NC 276957602

DANIEL F SCANLON II CPA

County Manager

DONALD I McREE JR

County Attorney

GWEN H KEENE CMC

Clerk to the Board

RE Limited Delegation ofCoSignature Authority for Program Delivery of Contracts
made to Currituck County as well as authorization for Fiduciary Representation
of County Director in Management of County Resource Allocations for the North
Carolina Cooperative Extension Currituck County

Dear Dean Wynne and Dr Ort

Under the limitations expressed in this letter and any other limitations deemed
appropriate and properly communicated by Currituck County Currituck County hereby
delegates the following authorities to the COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION DIRECTOR
North Carolina Cooperative Extension in Currituck County

1 THE COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION DIRECTOR is authorized to cosign
externallysponsored agreements those made by agenciessponsors other than the County or
NC State University made with the county or anonprofit affiliate of the county for purposes of
carrying out NC Cooperative Extension programs within Currituck County Thiscosignature
does not contractually bind the County or nonprofit affiliate unless accompanied by an
authorizing signature of the County or nonprofit affiliate The signature when required by the
Grantor acknowledges the scope of work and asserts that the scope of work is reasonable and
attainable with the resources anticipated

2 THE COUNTY COOPERATIVE EXTENSION DIRECTOR is authorized to execute
procurement transactions against an operating budget and directed grant and contract
resources assigned by NC Cooperative Extension in Currituck County Such authorization must
comply with all rules regulations and policies of the Currituck County operating principles

112



Dean Johnny Wynne Dean College of Agriculture and Life Sciences
Dr Jon F Ort Assistant Vice Chancellor Associate Dean and Director
October 29 2008

Page 2

All aspects of performance or nonperformance by NC State University Cooperative
Extension NC State employees shall be governed by the Memorandum of Understanding
between the Board of County Commissioners The North Carolina Cooperative Extension
Service at North Carolina State University and the North Carolina Cooperative Extension
Program at North CarolinaATState University dated October 31 2006 as modified NC State
employees acting responsibly under this delegation of authority shall do so as representative
agents of the County and in recognition that the County is fully responsible for all fiduciary
obligations associated with the conduct of County business including but not limited to proper
financial and programmatic stewardship of allocated County resources and directed grants and
contracts

Sincerely

Daniel F Scanlon
County Manager

c Dr Wanda Sykes NE District Extension Director
M Rodney Sawyer Jr County Extension Director

113



K cG COUNTY OF CURRITUCK
JC t

Tax Department
PO BOX 9

9 Currituck North Carolina 27929

MEMORANDUM

T0 Board of County Commissioners

FROM Tax Office

DATE October 29 2008

Tracy Sample Tax Administrator

252 2323005

252 2323568 FAX

SUBJECT Charge Levy on Motor Vehicles for August Renewals

Please charge to the Tax Collector the levy on motor vehicles for

August Renewals The Following is a breakdown of the assessment
and the total tax due

ASSESSMENT

20840608

TAXAMOUNT

6668993

TSlew

114



S it
J

J

GI it 1

r u
r

C5

C

y
1

f
at3

ti

W J
rv 3

c

C
i r
z
u n A

M M
M

O

p

a r

ji c p
ea Gy

ro ta p
y
R

Ci p

y
m Cf

07 p
ro
a

r m

r

m

o
tr iti

p
o iu

o
W W

b D
x rc

Q
U Ui

0l
0 In

p
i W

I

i

I

I

I

j I 1

I

i
i

n
u

r

1

i

i
i5

115



r o

ci
i
I

i

C3 rl
J

S I
UW

1
i r
i

C

it

sJ iwS
Ci

j
ra
iQ N

r

i

1
7

I

1

I

i

E

i
I

i
I
I
i

E
s

1

I

1

I

I

T CI

I
1
i

T

iTf
A

CI
i

I

i

CJ

Ti x

M 1Ff
Rt lt1
7J

E1

ulI c
ai

i

ti

Ct

i l

M 7J
r31i

1 7J

i Mf

t

1
T

r

J

c

C

M PJ
C

C C
in m

i r
PPf

1
i

i
i

r
tl

i

I

D
r

1 4

xc

m
u7

i
I

CI

o

Fi

r

Z
r

CIJ

as

n
i
i

I
i
i
f
i

c

IT
iJJ

r

G1
cl

ca

1
I
I

1
1

I
I C1
inn
I C

i i
I

p9
C
I

r

i

i

c
x
I

IFS

r
t7
CJ
1

dl

ITT
Cis
Ce
a

CG

I

i
i cI1

i ny i

I 1

w

I n

o

3
r1

G

i

CS I I I

7
c

E

r
r

r
s

I

71

w

ri
t

n

R

i

i

116



Number TDA2009006

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-540000 Worker's Compensation 5,380$                       
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 5,380$                     

5,380$                       5,380$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the  17th day of November 2008 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $5,380.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Promotion (15442) - To appropriate funds for additional worker's 
compensation for FY 2008 required after audit.

117



Number TDA2009006

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-545000 Contract Services 40,000$                     
15447-516100 Signs 5,000$                       
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 45,000$                   

45,000$                     45,000$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the  17th day of November 2008 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $45,000.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Related Expenditures (15447) - To appropriate funds for shrubs 
and gravel at public parking areas and for additional signage on the Outer Banks.

118



Number TDA2009006

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-540000 Worker's Compensation 5,380$                       
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 5,380$                     

5,380$                       5,380$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the  17th day of November 2008 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $5,380.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Promotion (15442) - To appropriate funds for additional worker's 
compensation for FY 2008 required after audit.

119


	Agenda
	Discussion on NC Division of Aging Service Breach
	Aging Service Breach

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 04-71 memo (2004)
	PB 04-71 text amendment (2005)

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 04-72 case analysis (2005)
	PB 04-72 zoning vicinity (2005)
	PB 04-72 site plan (2005)
	PB 04-72 illustrative plan (2008)

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-50 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-41 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-53 case analysis

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 08-48 case analysis
	PB 08-48 conceptual plan

	Consideration of Bid Award for RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser-Mainland Water System Upgrades
	RO Outfall Pipe and Diffuser Bid

	Consideration and Action
	Member Agreement Waste Management

	Consideration and Action
	Transfer Station Republic

	Budget amendments
	Budget Amendments

	Approval of November 3, 2008, Minutes
	November 3 Minutes

	Co-Signature Authority-North Carolina Cooperative Extension
	Extension Co-Signature Letter

	Charge to Tax Collector Levy on Motor Vehicles for August Renewals
	Levy on Motor Vehicles

	TDA Budget amendments
	TDA Budget Amendments

	Tourism Development Authority
	Budget Amendmednt 


